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ABOUT CABBEEN
MR

Cabheen is one of the leading Chinese designer brands.

The Group designs and sells apparels for men, women and chilaren under
four brands, namely, Cabbeen, Cabbeen Urban, Cabbeen Love and

2AM: ts retail network covers 31 provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities and several online platforms in the People’s Republic of China.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) =——

HEADQUARTERS IN CHINA

9th Floor, Block C

No. 8 Kai Tai Da Road

Huang Pu District, Guangzhou City
Guangzhou 510700

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza I
10 Cheung Yue Street
Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court
Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

KPMG, Certified Public Accountants
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG LAW

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China

China Construction Bank

China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd.
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

AFEH (])

R Bl #2858

B
RN T = s
FAZRAE 85
CHR91B

& 47510700

EEETEEXIDE
BB
B
RWH1058
BERES _H261ARBE

FMEHERNABFEILE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court
Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MERE

Financial highlights
Revenue

Gross profit

Profit from operation
Profit for the year

Earnings per share
(RMB cents)
— Basic
— Diluted

Dividend per share (HK cents)

— Interim dividend
— Final dividend
— Total dividend

Profitability ratios
Gross profit margin

Operating margin

Net profit margin
Return on total assets!
Return on equity®
Liquidity ratios
Current ratio

Average inventory

turnover days®
Average trade and bills

receivables turnover days®

Average trade and bills
payables turnover days®

Capital ratio
Interest coverage ratio®
Net debt to equity ratio®”

Gearing ratio®
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2021
B
RMB’000
AR®T T

1,372,662
628,837
255,300
168,641

24.56
24.52

8.5
3.4
11.9

45.8%
18.6%
12.3%

6.8%

11.8%

1.9
226
135

250

15.8

Net cash
FHRE
17.6%

2020
—E-FTF
RMB’000
ARETIT

1,288,422
608,465
292,844
195,041

29.05
29.05

7.6
5.3
12.9

47.2%
22.7%
15.1%

8.2%

14.7%

2.4
207
148

244

15.2
Net cash
FRE
26.5%

Changes

+6.5%
+3.3%
-12.8%
-13.5%

-15.5%
-15.6%

-1.4 ppt
(EIERaE
-4.1 ppt
(EIERaE]
-2.8 ppt
(EIERa
-1.4 ppt
(HER2E
-2.9 ppt
(EIERs
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Notes:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED) =

Return on total assets equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total assets.

Return on equity equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total shareholders’ equity.

Average inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the
beginning and closing inventory balance (exclude inventories of
PPE) divided by cost of sales and multiplied by the number of
days in the year.

Average trade and bills receivables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills receivables
balance (exclude balances related to sales of PPE) divided by
turnover (including value-added tax) and multiplied by the number
of days in the year.

Average trade and bills payables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills payables
balance (exclude balances related to purchase of PPE materials)
divided by costs of sales and multiplied by the number of days in
the year.

Interest coverage ratio equals profit before interest and tax for
one period divided by interest expenses of the same period.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by total equity
as of the end of the year. Net debt includes all borrowings net of

cash and cash equivalents.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED) =——

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (the “Company”,
stock code: 2030), | herewith present the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group” or “Cabbeen”) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Economic and business activities all over the world have
been disrupted since the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak
in early 2020 (the “Pandemic”). Though the Pandemic
has not ceased to affect the industry, macro environment
improved significantly in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) during the first half of 2021 when number of
coronavirus cases were dropping. During the first half of
2021, the Group’s core fashion business showed robust
recovery with high-teen percentage of retail revenue
growth. However, the growth had been slowed down since
the third quarter of 2021 when new coronavirus infections
were on the rise again in the PRC. The rise in new
infections led to more travel restrictions and lockdowns
which inevitably affected consumption sentiment and the
Group’s business. It seems that the virus containment
measures will stay in force in the near term and it will take
more time to allow the economy to return to normalcy.
In addition, recent housing market downturn in the PRC
have also reignited fears of disruption to the recovery and
seriously affected consumption sentiment.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREE(H)

It is currently a very difficult business environment.
Nevertheless, we are confident that the Pandemic will be
gone soon since vaccination rate has been increasing
and antiviral drug could be widely available in the near
future. And more accommodative government policies
could be on the way for economic recovery. We therefore
remain cautiously optimistic on the recovery of the Group’s
business. However, considering the possible derail of
recovery due to unfavorable macro environment and the
risk of surge in coronavirus infection, we had slowed down
physical store investments in the second half of 2021 and
reduced purchase orders of products for first half of 2022.
We will resume store number expansion in the future when
market condition become better, and will stay vigilant to
deal with the ever-shifting environment and enhance our
strategies for managing turbulence.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded revenue from core fashion business of
RMB1,372.7 million, representing an increase of 6.5%
from that for the year ended 31 December 2020. Revenue
from the Group’s side business, sales of medical gowns
and medical facial masks (“PPE”), decreased to RMB33.9
million. The Group had discontinued the PPE business in
December 2021 considering the highly competitive market
and thin operating margins. The Group’s net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2021 amounted RMB168.6
million, representing a decrease of 13.5% from that for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED) =——
EREE(HE)

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like express my & - AAZERKEFERORATEETH
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication 2 NERL * AR SMREREERERNRE N
and contribution, and to our shareholders and business = X #F ° MGHEES NS AR EBEKIZ R
partners for their support. We will continue with our ARFREIEEE -

endeavor to pursue growth of our business and create

value for our shareholders.

Chairman E4
Ziming Yang CEA
21 February 2022 - _F-HA=-+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTR 5 2 (1)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Cabbeen is a Chinese designer brand. It offers apparel
and accessories for men, women, and children under
the Cabbeen, Cabbeen Urban, Cabbeen Love and 2AM
brands. The Group derives its revenue from sales of its
products through franchise stores and online shops. Most
of the products sold under its brand names are designed
by the Group and majority of the products sold are
manufactured by independent manufacturers in mainland
China.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had 6 wholesale
distributors, 21 consignment distributors and 106 sub-
distributors operating a total of 830 retail shops in mainland
China, and the Group also operated one retail shop in
Hong Kong. In addition, the Group operates WeChat store
and other online shops on e-commerce platforms including
T-mall, JD.com, vipshop and sells products to other online
distributors.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had four design
workshops in Guangzhou City, Hong Kong, Milan and
Paris, respectively, with a team of 80 (2020: 73), including
64 designers (2020: 49) joining from mainland China,
other Asia countries, Hong Kong and Europe. The Group
also works with design institutes and contract designers
from around the world. It offered over 4,400 new stock-
keeping-units (SKUs) for 2021 product collections (over
4,700 SKUs for 2020 product collections).

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2021

E %401

e

RERTEARTAIMAE - HRESE L - &+
NAERERRE  EETREERE - REH
M - Cabbeen Love )& EME - REEFTS
W Ty BBR e S MR AE S E ER -
ETREHEENBRIBOEMIBAAEER
it BSHEN AR EMPEIATREAMBE T £
EETRFTEEE o

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8 A%£EE6
AR S IERE 21 BREDHEEH R 106 2 =/
DR - R B AR E 8I0ETE/EH
MAEBIVERBLE —BTEEH o 1L -
AEETCLEWEBRERE - "R R
LEHTELEEMMBERAEMSR D HE
SHEEM °

HE_Z-_—HF+-_A=+—H AEESH
REMNT - B KB AEREEEITEE -
EHHLESOR(ZTE-_TF :73R)KE ' B
Fe4B(ZEZTF - 49%) RKEFEANM -
HAZmMBIR « B8 RBUNARETAD - AEE
IR R MBI RR AT IS SR & HORRETRI & 1E -
REEWN T —FEMRY|F B 4,400 &
FR(ZEZTFEMZRY : #BiB 4,700 E

) e




MANAGEMENT DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

Retail channel performance

Performance of retail stores operated by the Group, its
distributors and sub-distributors for the year ended 31
December 2021 are summarized below.

- Total retail revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021 increased by 7.7% as compared to 2020.

- Retail sales revenue from physical stores for the year
ended 31 December 2021 increased by 3.8% while
same store sales from comparable physical stores
that had been operated for at least 24 months
decreased by 4.1% as compared to that of 2020.

- Retail revenue from online shops increased by
approximately 17.2% for the year ended 31
December 2021 as compared to 2020.

- Cabbeen had 3.9 million VIP members as of 31
December 2021.

- Average retail discount at physical stores for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
27.3%.

- Up to 31 January 2022, sell-through rate of the
Group’s 2021 collections was over 57.1%.

EERTRER 2 (1)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERRER S (1)

Retail network by geographical regions RihBEHISHESERE
At 31 December 2021 At 31 December 2020
BZ-E--F+-B=1-H HE-E-FE1-A=1-H
Wholesale  Consignment  Self-operated Total Wholesale  Gonsignment Total
2 8 EH s ks 1€ it
Geographical HE
Central China E 178 )| - 209 168 34 202
Southwestern China i 40 118 - 158 46 115 161
Southern China i 2 238 - 260 2 27 249
Eastern China 7 2 75 - n 5 67 7
Northern China £t 12 57 - 69 7 59 86
Northwester China iiple 15 30 - 45 - 50 50
Northeastern China it - 12 - 12 - 10 10
Others At - - 1 1 1 - 1
Total @ 269 561 1 831 249 562 811
Retail outlets by brands iz £ &85 NS E/EH
[m;
@® Cabbeen K& 67.1% 73.6%

Cabbeen Urban R&E#PTH
@ Cabbeen LOVE Cabbeen LOVE

0.7% 2. 4%

6.5%

® 2AM ERmE 4325 & 53
® Multi-brands % mhe 25 G%
As of 31 December 2021 As of 31 December 2020
R=2——F+=-A=+—AH R=—2_®f+-A=+—8
Retail outlets by channel #%:RESI P WS E/EH
'u}
0 5%

51.4% 28.2% 16.0% 33

@ Shopping mall &5

o 20 4%
Department store & & A7)

® Street shops

234|

2021

As of 31 December 2021
R-B-_—%+-A=+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

EERTRER 2 (1)

Retail outlets hy city-tiers 3T & B &2 NWEE/EHE

47.0%

® Tier 1 —4R 31.4%

Tier 2 —z 261
® Tier3 =
® Tier4 O 4%

10.0%
As of 31 December 2021
R-Z-——%+-A=+—AH
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Fashion industry in the PRC has faced exceptionally
challenging conditions in recent years with highly
competitive industry environment and bumpy macro
environment. Complicated by the Pandemic and recent
real estate market downturn, the growth prospect for
China’s apparel industry is facing more uncertainties.
Fashion companies have been adjusting their expanding
strategies including calibrate their retail footprints and
focus working on upgrading their e-commerce channels
and control measures in their supply chains. Though
the market environment is tough, the shifting tastes and
growing popularity of local brands among millennials in
recent years should bring good opportunities ahead for
Chinese home-grown designer brands.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTR 5 2 (1)

THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE GROUP’S
OPERATION

Economic and business activities all over the world were
disrupted since the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak in early
2020. Though the pandemic has not ceased to affect
the industry, macro environment improved significantly
in the PRC during the first half of 2021 when number of
coronavirus cases were dropping. During the first half of
2021. the Group’s core fashion business showed robust
recovery with high-teen percentage of retail sales growth.
However, the growth had been slowed down since the
third quarter of 2021 when new coronavirus infections were
on the rise again in the PRC. The rise in new infections
led to more travel restrictions and lockdowns which
inevitably affected consumption sentiment and the Group’s
business. It seems that the virus containment measures
will stay in force in the near term and it will take more time
to allow the economy to return to normalcy. Considering
the possible derail of recovery due to unfavorable macro
environment and the risk of surge in coronavirus infection,
we had slowed down physical store investments since the
second half of 2021 and decreased orders of products for
first half of 2022.

On the other hand, the PPE business, the Group started
in February 2020 was slowed during the year ended
31 December 2021. Sales volume of PPE fell due to
increased supply while average selling price had come
down significantly from peak levels. Considering the thin
margins and PPE business had never been the Group’s
focus nor major line of business, the Group discontinued
the PPE business in December 2021. Sales and net
income from sales of PPE for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB33.9 million and RMB2.0 million,
respectively.

Since vaccination rate has been increasing and antiviral
drug could be widely available in the near future, and
mutation of the coronavirus might be less severe than prior
ones, we remain cautiously optimistic on the recovery of
the Group’s business in the near future.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Annual Report 2021

COVID-19 HFRERBHXE

PR EREFEHBE T _FFFA
COVID-19E BB BEURZEITE - BEREIE
WARFIEFEITE  FEABREN T =—
FE¥FEHNUERRSEREE TRZIBER
TEABNE -R_T-_—FL¥F A&EE
IO REBER CERTR - TERR
WEREIIMK - AT AR _—FF=F
s At ERRSRLEERNFPREEBRE
T+ BEARE B EEFIAEHEE o FTRRRGIE
MBHEZHIRITR G R EEEL S - S
RENHBBENMASBEBEKRTE - BHMIE
SR EBEEAADSEEER - Fihns
FERZRHMEARER LR - EEHTFZE
BIRELERRS BRI ERZE 2 Bt
HELBERNSE BMIERZZE—FT
FFEFRIGRIER ERRINERE - WHIR T
—ECF P FERFEE -

E—AE AEER-_ZE-_TFE_AHEZ
AL EEEESNEE_E-_—F+=A
=+—BLEFENE - AN EREERAHER
mmEHEEMYESMAREE - EAPESE
H2SHERFEAE TR - ZRIFBEME R
EAPT BB EBN R IEAREE 2 BT
SFEEREHE R ASKEER T _—F
TZAKRETEAGEREXE BEZT
——F+—A=+—HIEFE ' BAAWEEE
ZHENMHEEFRADRABARKIZOEE
TEARE20B8ETT -

HNRERBRAE MR TR S YR
RETAKKREREGEZER - UEERES
MEESERBAE RS BREE - %
AEBEBEIARRZERB AR FIERR
28 o




MANAGEMENT DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

PROSPECTS

Online sales have continued to develop very well during the
Pandemic. Sales performances in new digital social media
platforms such as Tiktok are specifically encouraging.
The forces of digital transformation in fact have already
dominated consumer and corporate spheres prior to the
Pandemic. The Pandemic has only hastened this multiyear
trend. With anticipation of the permanent changes in
consumer preferences and digital sales channels, the
Group has invested in wider adoption of technologies in
areas including cloud computing, automation and data
analytics. The Group believes e-commerce revenue
contribution will increase steadily over the next few years.

In addition, we noticed the rental for retail shops in general
has come down during the time of market distress. We
have seized the chance to optimize our store network to
better locations. However, considering the possible derail
of recovery due to unfavorable macro environment and the
risk of surge in coronavirus infection, we had slowed down
physical store investments in the second half of 2021. We
will resume store number expansion in the future when
market condition become better.

In the meantime, we will keep investing in brand promotion
as the engine for our business growth will always be
customer recognition and brand health. We also noted
that there has been shifting tastes and growing popularity
of Chinese local brands among millennials in recent years.
Accordingly, we believe there should be good opportunities
ahead for Chinese home-grown designer brands.

EERTRER 2 (1)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EERTR 5 2 (1)

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %5 O
Revenue &
Revenue hy sales channel BREERENSHEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLHFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥T AREET T
Onlineshops  #xL/5# | 668901 48.7% | | 612481  475%
Offline shops BTG
Wholesale s 278,473 20.3% 224,560 17.5%
Consignment K3 423,896 30.9% 451,381 35.0%
_ Seffoperated A = | 182 01% | - -
.| 103761 51.3% | | 675941  525%
Net revenue FU 1,372,662 100.0% 1,288,422 100.0%
Revenue by brands BRaBfska
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HILEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZToFF
RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %
AR¥T T ARETIT
Cabbeen <& 942,164 68.6% 993,841 771%
Cabbeen Urban REH™ 384,019 28.0% 252,047 19.6%
Cabbeen Love Cabbeen Love 5,027 0.4% 17,611 1.4%
2AM EE M 34,434 2.5% 16,618 1.3%
Others A o8 05%| 83056 0.6%
1,372,662 100% 1,288,422 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit was RMB628.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 compared to RMB608.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Gross profit margin decreased from 47.2% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to 45.8% for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease in gross profit margin was
attributable to the increase in sales rebates and discounts
offered to distributors.

Other income

Other income primarily consists of interest income from
bank deposits, government grants and net foreign
exchange differences. The decrease in other income from
RMB84.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMBG68.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
was mainly attributable to reduction in foreign exchange
gain and government grant income in 2021.

Net income from sale of PPE

The Group has commenced the production and sale
of PPE since February 2020 in response to the PRC
government’s invitation for support in the midst of the
Pandemic. PPE business was terminated in December
2021 considering the price and demand of PPE had come
down significantly and thin operating margins. Net income
from sale of PPE for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 comprised of the following items.

EERTRER 2 (1)

EHREFE

HEZTZ—F+-A=+—HILFEZE
FMAARK628.8F&EL MBE_S_ZTF
+ZA=+—HIEFEAARBE085EETT

EHERBEE T _TF+=-_A=+—81
FREZAI2% BRIV EHE_T-_—F+=H
—t+—HItFEZ458%  EFEFILOEER
EHEE D BT R T 25 ST IS ANATEL o

Ht A

HEMWRAEEBIERITEROMNEMRA - BT
WA R FELERE  c A ABEE_T=-F
FT_A=T—HBLEFENARK84.08E
TR EHE_T_—F+H=1T—HILF
EHAR®686EEBIT FEHR-T=_—
FHYRE 5 W e S U BhRk A P ER o

HEEARERMIBBA
BT A AKECDRREERE
SEAEEME - UERTEBUFNERE - &
RIEHFRH IR - ZRIEADERFHER
KB IE T & BELFBE  HER=F
_—¢+_HW¢MA%§%ﬁ¥ﬁ BE
—ERZEFEF-_A=1— Htif

ZﬁgﬂAWE%ﬁm@%AEMTEHﬁ
X o

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—BHLHFE

2021 2020

—B-—F —T_TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®ETTT

Revenue e 33,865 526,091
Government grant income BT R B A 3,196 6,660
Cost of production A ERAR (35,420) (406,391)
Sales commission HEME - (29,556)
Inventory write down FEMUR - (37,854)
Donations g - (5,022)
JOthers .. B o |........384f (13,026)

Net income from SHE EAPERENF

sale of PPE YA 2,025 40,902

—E- 558 FEARGERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTR 5 2 (1)

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly
operating cost for e-commerce sales channels, advertising
and promotion, and logistics and delivery expenses. Selling
and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB290.6 million, representing an
increase of RMB89.5 million or 44.5%, from that of the
year ended 31 December 2020. The increase of selling
and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 was attributable to more promotion and advertising
costs and fee to celebrity brand ambassador and
additional staff cost for e-commerce channel management
and live streaming business.

Selling and distribution expense for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 mainly comprised of the
following:

HERSHMAX

HERDEAT T EREENHEERENEE
A BEREEARMARNEER - 8%
—E-—FF+-_A=+—HILFE  HEED
A AARK206BHETT BEE-_Z=
SF+ A=+ HIEFEEMARKSSH
Brsk445% HEE-_—F+-A=+—
HIEFEZHE RS HEFAIZMTIRR AR
BARENEENESERANENFEAEEAR
NEESENE TR AT -

BE_ZT-_—FR-_ZF-_FFT_A=1+—H
IFEFEZHERDHEFAX EEHATHEK

2021 2020
—E=-—5F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R AREFIT
Staff costs BT 70,351 30,912
Advertising and promotion B R E 139,501 89,395
Delivery and logistics ~NERY® 39,843 36,387
e-commerce platform EETafx
expenses 23,585 32,584
Others oL ISR 17338 11,795
290,618 201,073
Administrative and other operating expenses T B Hfth & E BT

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly
comprise staff costs, design, research and development
expenses, management consulting expenses, provision for
inventories and doubtful debts, office rental, depreciation
and amortization charges and other miscellaneous
expenses. Administrative and other operating expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
RMB153.6 million representing a decrease of RMB85.9
million or 35.9% from the year ended 31 December 2020.
The decrease in administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was mainly attributable to a
decrease in impairment of inventories.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

Administrative and other operating expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 mainly comprised of
the following:

EERTRER 2 (1)

BHE_Z-—FR-_FT-"FTF+-_A=+—H
ti@Zﬁﬁ&E@%@%iigmuT@
EJZ :

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Staff costs B IR 58,686 63,334
Research and development  #f13£5357 (8 TR AR I1M)
expenses, exclude
staff costs 12,333 8,608
Amortization and depreciation ##4 & #TE 23,954 24,195
Auditors’ remuneration Gl A 3,042 3,467
Legal and professional fee FEREEER 2,824 5,155
Impairment loss of trade 2 5 WA K&
and bills receivables RN EBH R EEE 608 (218)
Inventory write-down FEHOR 47,389 85,981
Donations R 1,347 10,566
Others HAt 3,406 38,377
153,589 239,465
Profit from operations RERR

The Group recorded a profit from operations of RMB255.3
million (2020: RMB292.8 million) for the year ended 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately
12.8%. Operating margin decreased from 22.7% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to 18.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 which was mainly attributable
the significant reduction of PPE business.

Excluding the net income from PPE business, profit from
operations and operating margin for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB253.3 million (2020: RMB251.9
million) and 18.5% (2020: 19.6%), respectively.

HE_ZTZ-—F+-_A=+—HLFE XK
SEHSEERMNARK2535E L(Z
ToTF: ARB2028BHET)  BiBALD
12.8% - KEFBERHBE_T-_TF+_H
=t+—BItFERN22.7% TREHE T ——
FH+ZA=F+—HIEFEN186% FTEHRN
1A B 5 375 KRR BT B o

B’%X@1!/\%#“*{%%%%%5%&)\%\ EHE—

—F+ A=+ —HILLFENEE RN R
£<<< **%'J/F‘EJT’\EW%/\E%%S 3IEEL(ZE
—TF AR®2519887T) K185% (=F
ZTF 1 19.6%) °

—g=-554 FEABGARLT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTR 5 2 (1)

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
finance costs amounted to RMB16.2 million (2020:
RMB19.3 million) or 1.2% (2020: 1.5%) of the Group’s
revenue. Finance costs represent primarily interest
expenses for a Hong Kong dollar bank loan of a subsidiary
operated in Hong Kong. The decrease in interest expenses
was because of a reduction of outstanding amount of
bank loans.

Share of loss of an associate

The associated company is engaged in property
development, in which the Group has 33.33% (2020:
33.33%) effective equity interest. The property held by
this associated company is an office complex under
construction in Guangzhou City, the PRC.

Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2021, income tax
expenses of the Group amounted to RMB68.9 million
(2020: RMB78.3 million) and the effective tax rate was
29.0% (2020: 28.7%).

Profit for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 decreased by
13.5% to RMB168.6 million from RMB195.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Net profit margin for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was 12.3% (2020: 15.1%).
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 were RMB24.56 cents (2020: RMB29.05
cents) and RMB24.52 cents (2020: RMB29.05 cents),
respectively.

Excluding the net profit from PPE business, profit for the
year and net profit margin for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB167.1 million (2020: RMB164.4 million) and
12.2% (2020: 12.8%), respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

Other key financial ratios

Average inventory turnover days of the Group were 226
days for the year ended 31 December 2021, as compared
to 207 days for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
increase was a result of higher inventory balance as of 31
December 2021.

Average turnover days of trade and bills receivables
increased to 135 days for the year ended 31 December
2021 as compared to 148 days for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was fairly stable.

Average trade and bills payable turnover days remained
fairly stable for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021 at 244 days and 250 days, respectively.

The Group’s gearing ratio was 17.6% as at 31 December
2021 (2020: 26.5%), being a ratio of sum of bank loans
of RMB251.2 million (2020: RMB351.2 million) to equity.
Gearing ratio decreased was attributable to an increase
in equity while amount of outstanding bank loan balances
decreased as at 31 December 2021.

Significant Investments Held by the Group

Except for interest in an associate with carrying value of
RMB47.5 million, there was no significant investment held
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Associated Companies

There was no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Future Plan for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in section “Capital Commitments and
Contingencies”, as of the date of this report, the Group did
not have plans for material investments and capital assets
in the coming year.

EERTRER 2 (1)

HthEEBM#HLLSE

HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE  £*&
BEYHFERAEXSA226H  MEBEE-Z=
TFE+ZA= + Eljtirﬁlh%zom o FLiE
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B mEz—_2-_ZF+_A=+—HIFE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTR 5 2 (1)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets and time
deposits with initial terms of over three months totaling
RMB650.8 million (31 December 2020: RMB914.8 million).

At 31 December 2021, the Group was in net cash position
of RMBO0.5 million (31 December 2020: RMB176.9 million).
Net cash or net debt equals all borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents. The decrease in net cash as of 31
December 2021 was mainly attributable to reduction in
operating cash inflow.

The Group recorded net operating cash outflow of
RMB3.7 million (2020: net operating cash inflow of
RMB363.2 million) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The decrease in operating cash inflow for the year ended
31 December 2021 was mainly attributable to an increase
in inventories and trade receivables.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended
31 December 2021 was RMB84.7 million (2020: net cash
generated from investing activities of RMB15.0 million),
which represented mainly an increase in property, plant
and equipment, pledged bank deposits and loans to an
associate.

Net cash used in financing activities was RMB188.5 million
(2020: RMB110.8 million) for the year ended 31 December
2021. This mainly consisted of payments of dividends of
RMB76.6 million, repayment of bank loans of RMB92.7
million and payment of bank loan interests of RMB14.6
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

Long term and short term bank loans as of 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021 were unsecured, bearing at
floating interest rate and were denominated in the following
currencies.

EERTRER 2 (1)

HE T FF+_A=+—HBk_ZT-—F
+ - A=+—BMEREREHRTERAER
o IREBFEGT BWIRA T EEEHE -

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
s ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Short term bank loans FRHEIRITE R
Hong Kong Dollar BT 251,174 33,612
. Renminbi AR 60,000 _
251,174 93,612
Long term bank loan REJIRITER
Hong Kong Dollar BIT - 258,532

On 20 December 2019, the Group accepted banking
facilities relating to a three-year term loan facilities in
an aggregate amount of HK$350.0 million offered by a
licensed bank in Hong Kong. Pursuant to the facility, the
controlling shareholder shall maintain his equity interest
and voting rights in the Company at a certain level, and at
the same time it is subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios. A breach
of these undertakings would result in the drawn down
facilities and interest becoming payable on demand. The
facilities were utilized with a loan amounted to HK$350.0
million drawn down in February 2020. Outstanding amount
of the loan as at 31 December 2021 was HK$310.0 million
(equivalent RMB251.2 million).

RZE—AE+-_A=-+RH ~xEEEREH
HAEB—RXFBETRNESRER350.088
BTN =FHERRENRITRE - BIZZ#
B ERBERGREFERAQ RN RE RIS
BRETKFE B BREEKRKEBEAETA
SE L RARE - BRZEFABEFN
IRIEE R EBIREREE - ZFMEDH
- BEER-_Z-_ZTF— AZEI850.0F&E
TER - R_E-_—F+-_A=+—H  KE
EENEERA008EET(HERARSE
2512 HETT) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTR 5 2 (1)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had unutilized
banking facilities amounted to RMB76.8 million.

The Group adopts a set of centralized financing and
treasury policies in order to ensure the Group’s funds are
utilized efficiently. The Group’s liquidity position remains
healthy and the Group possesses sufficient cash and
available banking facilities to meet its commitments and
working capital requirements.

The Group’s primary objectives for managing its capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to provide returns
to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder’s returns that might be possible with higher
level of borrowings and the advantages and security based
on a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group mainly operates in mainland China with most
of the transactions originally denominated and settled
in RMB. However, the Group pays dividends in Hong
Kong dollars and the majority of its bank loans are also
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly, the Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from Hong
dollar against RMB.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and to mitigate the impact on
exchange rate fluctuations by entering into currency hedge
arrangement if necessary. During the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2021, no forward foreign exchange
or hedging contracts had been entered into by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, deposits with certain banks
of approximately RMB114.1 million (2020: RMB92.4
million) and certain land and properties thereon located
in Fujian Province of the PRC with carrying value of
RMB224.4 million (2020: RMB149.6 million) were pledged
as securities for bank loans and bills payable facilities.
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant loans and bills payable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total capital
commitments of RMB88.4 million (2020: RMB96.7 million),
primarily related to ERP system upgrades, decoration
cost of an office in Guangzhou City and investments in
production facilities.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 545 employees
(2020: 469 employees). Total staff costs, including
directors emoluments, for the period amounted to
approximately RMB129.0 million (2020: RMB94.2 million).
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration
policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their
contributions to the Group. Share options are granted
to eligible employees to recognise their contribution and
provide incentives to achieve better performance in coming
years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTR 5 2 (1)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Eligibility to Attend and Vote at
the 2022 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 30 March 2022 to Monday, 4 April 2022
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the
shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2022 AGM”). In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the 2022 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificate must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29 March 2022.

For Determining the Eligibility to the Proposed Final
Dividend

In addition, subject to the approval of the proposed final
dividend by the shareholders at the 2022 AGM on Monday,
4 April 2022, the register of members will be closed on
Monday, 11 April 2022 for the purpose of determining
shareholders who qualify for the proposed final dividend. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificate must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer
office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 8 April 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) =——

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HKB.4 cents (2020: HK5.3 cents) per ordinary share for
the financial year. Including the interim dividend paid for
the year ended 31 December 2021, total dividend payout
for the year is approximately HK$79.6 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB65.6 million) (2020: HK$86.2 million,
equivalent to approximately RMB75.3 million) or a dividend
payout ratio of 40% (2020: 40%). Subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, the final dividend will be paid in cash on
or around 25 April 2022 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 11 April 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will
be subject to the Company’s discretion. Dividends may
be paid only out of its distributable reserves as permitted
under the relevant laws. Holders of the shares will be
entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according to
the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares.
Subject to the factors described above, the Company
has adopted a general dividend policy since the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 of declaring and paying
dividends on semi-annual basis of not more than 50%
of its total net profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The Board would review the Company’s
dividend policy from time to time considering factors
including but not limited to debt covenants, capital
investment and business plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT

EREIWSE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders,
and to comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements as well as fulfill its commitment to excellence
in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’s corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Board is
satisfied that save for the deviation from code Provision
C.2.1 as disclosed below, the Company complied with the
code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules for the entire year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board has established four Board committees, being
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee (each a “Board Committee” and collectively
the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr.
Rongqin Ke and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen
and Mr. Ming Shu Leung.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED) =——

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 59
to 65 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions are available on the websites of
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Ziming Yang, the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and an executive Director of the Company, is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Rongqgin Ke, who is an executive
Director of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there
are no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Group. It also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive
Directors and members of senior management. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to
assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at
the Group’s expense upon their reasonable request. The
Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of
such mechanism annually.
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All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment, the directorships or other positions
they are concurrently holding at other companies or
organizations. These interests are updated on an annual
basis as and when necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and
written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, including access
to management or professional advice if considered
necessary.

() Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 8
October 2013. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, hamely
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen, and
Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management
systems, and relationship with external auditors
of the Group, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and such responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee
meets with the Company’s external and internal
auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programs, the results of their examinations
as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED) =——

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2021. Major work
completed by the Audit Committee during the year
includes:

° reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim
financial information and annual financial
statements;

o reviewed significant accounting and audit
issues;

° reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications,

independence and performance;

° reviewed the external auditor’s management
letter and the management’s response;

° reviewed annual internal audit plans;

° assisted the Board to evaluate on the
effectiveness of financial reporting procedures
and internal control system;

o advised on material event or drawing the
attention of the management on related risks;

° reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s systems of internal control and
risk management;

° reviewed connected transactions entered into
by the Group or subsisting during the year;
and

° reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk

management and internal control systems in
respect of the previous fiscal year annually.
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(i)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on
8 October 2013. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Yung Kwok
Tsui, Mr. Ming Shu Leung and Mr. Siu Keung Ng. Mr.
Yung Kwok Tsui is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall
remuneration structure and policy for all Directors
and senior management as well as the specific
remuneration packages for the executive Directors
and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent process for developing
such remuneration policy. No Director takes part
in any discussion on his own remuneration. The
Company'’s objective for its remuneration policy is
to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group’s performance are taken into account.

The remuneration policy for the Directors and
our senior management members is based on
their experience, level of responsibility, length
of service and general market conditions. Any
discretionary bonus and other merit payments are
linked to the financial results of the Group and the
individual performance of the directors and senior
management members.
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(i)

FE=EA®

FMEEeRN _ZET—=F+ANBK
Vo FMNEEEREMB B IENITE
ERABEEERRHREEUR—RH
TEZERVBEL - BERBALLE A
ZEEXF FTHEEEMNETERES
BAEREENEAETEENEEH I
EERBERARIITESRRREEE
BERIFT NS « KB HIE it 5 BB
KM IERMEFERENER - WA
FTEERESeREER  BREESS
HEBHERNSHFWNOEM R o AAA
HEMBERN BB BERME 1T
XE MRFHMEBATRARF
7o RARABEMIGKE FESEHNT
B2 - R  BE - TIEFBEREAER
FREAR BERESENEIMNN
M REEKE -

EENERERABZHFMTEINER
BE &R BEKY  RBFHE—
fRmM o (ERBBIEAL R EthE MRS
HRAEBNBEEEANEERSRE
AR ZEARBHR o
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Major
work completed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year includes:

° reviewed the remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

o reviewed the Company’s share option
scheme; and
° assessed performance of our executive

Directors, discussed and approved the terms
of executive Directors’ service contracts.

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management of the Group by band for the year

ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration bands
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

RIBEETRBIMSETNATRENEH
ExMe kAR EaFMERNE—XF
RN B IHRRMES M9 -

“E-—FFHR FERGARAS

37




CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

PREQRSE ()
(i) Nomination Committee (i) RBEERAT

38

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

The Nomination Committee was established
on 8 October 2013. It comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Honghui
Chen and Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Ziming Yang
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession
planning of Directors and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also give consideration
to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below),
SO as to develop and review measurable objectives
for the implementing the Board Diversity Policy
(as defined below) and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2021 and reviewed
the size, diversity and composition of the Board,
and discussed the policy for the nomination of
directors, which includes the nomination procedures
and the process and criteria adopted to select and
recommend candidates for directorship.

Annual Report 2021
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(iv) Corporate Governance Gommittee

The Corporate Governance Committee was
established on 8 October 2013. It comprises
one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Keung
Ng, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui and Mr. Ming Shu
Leung. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is the chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee. The principal
responsibilities of the Corporate Governance
Committee are to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, the
training and continuous professional development of
the Company’s Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
and to review the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2021
and has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
policies and practices and sufficiency of training to
the Company’s Directors and senior management,
and reviewed duties performed by the Board under
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. For regular Board
meetings, notices of at least 14 days are given to facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and agenda with
supporting papers are sent to Directors not less than 3
days before the relevant meeting is held. Directors may
propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.
At the meeting, the Directors are provided with the relevant
documents to be considered and approved. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the board meeting is held. Minutes of Board
meetings are taken by the Company Secretary or a duly
appointed secretary of the Board meeting and are open for
inspection by any Director.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) and the
meetings of the Board and other Board committees held
during the year:

AGM Board
RRBFAE 44
Executive Directors ~ H{TEZ
Mr. Ziming Yang BEBRE 11 4/4
Mr. Siu Keung Ng RO®EAE 17 4/4
Mr. Rongain Ke R 0/1 4/4
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui RRELE 11 4/4
Mr. Honghui Chen REBEE 0/1 4/4
Mr. Ming Shu Leung RERTE 0/1 4/4
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2019, subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a Director either by the
shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors
or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required
to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively represent
the best interests of the Group and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good
judgment, and to provide practical insights and diverse
perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board, the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection
with its assessment and recommendation of candidates
for director, consider diversity (including, but not limited
to, gender, race, ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and
such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then
current and anticipated future needs of the Board and
the Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new
board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

o the highest professional and personal ethics;

o broad experience in business;

° ability to provide insights and practical wisdom
based on their experience and expertise;

° commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

° sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

their service on other boards of public companies
should be limited to a reasonable number;

° compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and
° ability to develop a good working relationship with

other Board members and contribute to the Board’s
working relationship with senior management of the
Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 8
October 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis,
the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates will be based on the Company’s Board
Nomination Policy and a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The Board also aspires
to having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in the Group’s core markets and
distribution channels.

The Board considered that Independent Directors can
enhance the effectiveness and decision-making of the
Board by providing independent view, objective judgement
and constructive challenge to the Board and management
of the Group.
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The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board and also the needs of the Board without focusing
on a single diversity aspect.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Board
recognises the importance and benefits of gender diversity
at the Board level and shall continue to take initiatives to
identify female candidate(s) to enhance the gender diversity
among the Board members. We will appoint, subject to
the above, at least one female representation in our Board
before 31 December 2024.

Our diversity philosophy including the gender diversity
was generally followed in the workforce throughout the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. As of the
date of this report, 100% of Directors and 48% of our total
workforce were male. We will continue with our endeavor
to increase female representation in our Board.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and financial position to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. In addition, briefings and updates on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements are provided to the
Board during Board meetings to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. In November 2021, the Company, together with
its legal adviser, organized a training session to provide the
Directors with an update on the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Ziming Yang holds the positions of Chairman and
chief executive officer. Such practice deviates from Code
Provision C.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Mr. Yang’s extensive experience in the industry
and deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Yang provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership, allows for more effective
planning and execution of long-term business strategies
and enhances efficiency in decision-making.

As all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board committees,
and there are independent non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is
therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the
Board. The Board will continue to review and monitor the
practices of the Company for the purpose of complying
with the CG Code and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices of the Company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the
Group to protect the overall interests of the shareholders
and the Group. They serve actively on the Board and its
committees to provide their independent and objective
VIEWS.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Each independent non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions (the
“Securities Dealing Code”). Upon specific enquiries,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the relevant provisions of the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

Senior management who, because of their office in
the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provisions of the Securities Dealing Code when dealing in
the Company’s shares.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lai Wah Wong, the Company Secretary of the
Company, is a full-time employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She
also serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Corporate Governance Committee and other Board
Committees as organised by the Board from time to
time. Ms. Wong is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman and/or the chief executive officer on
governance matters.

During the financial year, the Company Secretary complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of
the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 59 to 65 in the annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure
the Company maintains a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system. The system
include a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and are designed to help the Group identify,
evaluate and manage the significant risks to achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The Group’s internal control system is
designed to safeguard assets against misappropriation
and unauthorized disposition and to manage operational
risks. Review of the Group’s internal controls covering
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions. The controls built into
the risk management system are intended to manage,
not eliminate, significant risks in the Group’s business
environment.

The Group’s internal audit department monitors compliance
with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of
internal control structures across the Group and its
principal divisions. The internal audit department reports
directly to the Audit Committee and ensure the internal
controls are in place and functioning properly as intended.
Also, the Board engaged external professional expert to
assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems periodically which covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as risk management functions.
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The Group’s risk management framework includes the
following elements:

° identify significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks
on the Group’s business;

° develop necessary measures to manage those
risks;
° monitor and review the effectiveness of such

measures; and

° review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems in respect
of the previous fiscal year annually.

The implementation of risk management framework of
the Group was assisted by the Group’s internal audit
department so that the Group could ensure new and
emerging risks relevant to the Group’s operation are
promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy
of action plans to manage these risks and monitor and
evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans. These are
on-going processes and our Audit Committee reviews
periodically the Group’s risk management systems.

The Board considered that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate.
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Audit committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy
which, among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could
take and effectiveness of risk management measures.
Based on the reports from the Group’s internal control
department and the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is adequate and effective and the Group has complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal controls
as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s accounts which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the
year and in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, and the Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies
and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future and not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on
its ability to continue as going concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the
external auditor.
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During the year, the fees payable to KPMG or its affiliated
firms comprise service charges for the following:

Statutory audit EEEZ

Review of interim results FRPEEE
Internal control review BEER S
Tax consultation services WA AR

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Ziming Yang, Acute Result Holdings Limited (“Acute
Result”), Ascend Fame Limited (“Ascend Fame”), Prime
Ascend Limited (“Prime Ascend”) are the controlling
shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of
the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”). Each
of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that none of them is engaged in, or interested
in any business (other than the Group) which directly or
indirectly competes or may compete with the business
of the Group. To protect the Group from any potential
competition, the Controlling Shareholders have given an
irrevocable non-compete undertaking in the Group’s favour
on 8 October 2013 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
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In order to properly manage any potential or actual
conflict of interests between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders in relation to the compliance
and enforcement of the non-compete undertaking, the
Company has adopted the following corporate governance
measures:

(@ the independent non-executive Directors will
review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the
undertaking given by the Controlling Shareholders
under the Deed of Non-competition;

(b) the Controlling Shareholders undertake to provide
all information requested by the Company which is
necessary for the annual review by the independent
non-executive Directors and the enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition;

(© the Company will disclose decisions on matters
reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors relating to compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking of the Controlling
Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition in
the annual reports of the Company; and

(d) the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual
declaration on compliance with their undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition in the annual
report of the Company.

The Directors consider that the above corporate
governance measures are sufficient to manage any
potential conflict of interests between the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates and the
Group and to protect the interests of the shareholders, in
particular, the minority shareholders.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that he/it has complied with the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance
and enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and
confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been
complied with.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance
structure, enable all its shareholders an equal opportunity
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow all
shareholders to engage actively with the Company. Under
the Company’s articles of association, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the
Company enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i)

(i)

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for direct communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Company
encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general
meetings where the shareholders meet and
exchange views with the Board, and to exercise
their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall
arrange notices of meetings and circulars containing
details on proposed resolutions to be sent to
the shareholders no less than 20 business days
before the meeting. At general meetings, separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at
Unit A&B, 26 Floor, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon or via email to
ir@cabbeen.com.
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(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings (il) ZBEARFEIFAINKE

52

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Directors or the Company Secretary and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Hong
Kong currently situated at Unit A&B, 26 Floor,
Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for
election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition.
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The notice of annual general meeting together
with the accompanying circular setting out the
relevant information as required under the Listing
Rules are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting has
been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to
one vote. Details of the poll voting procedures are
set out in the circular sent to shareholders prior to
the meeting and explained at the commencement
of the meeting. Voting results are posted on the
Company'’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

Procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director

Pursuant to the Article 85 of the articles of
associations of the Company, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a Notice (as defined therein) signed
by a Member (as defined therein) (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a Notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the Registration
Office provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the Notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

(iv)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company considers that effective communication
with the Shareholders and stakeholders is essential for
enhancing investor relations and understanding of the
Group’s business, performance and strategies.

The Company is committed to enhancing long-term
shareholder value through regular communication
with its shareholders, both individual and institutional.
The Company strives to ensure that all shareholders
have ready, equal and timely access to all publicly
available information of the Company that is accurate,
comprehensible and informative. The shareholders’
communication policy sets out the framework in place to
promote effective communication with shareholders so
as to enable them to engage actively with the Company
and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner.

The Company endeavours to maintain an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting
(the “EGM”). In respect of each matter to be considered at
the annual general meeting and the EGM, including the re-
election of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed
by the chairman of the Board. The chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Board Committees and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will
be available at the annual general meeting and the EGM
to meet with the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
The Company will also invite representatives of the auditor
of the Company to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to answer Shareholders’ questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s
independence.
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The Company recognises the importance of shareholders’
privacy and will not disclose shareholders’ information
without their consent, unless required by law to do so.

The communication strategies under the shareholders’
communication policy are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars.

Shareholders and the investment community may
at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly
available.

Shareholders and the investment community can
contact the secretary of the Company by email,
fax, phone or mail via designated contacts of the
Company during office hours in order to enable
them to make any query in respect of the Company.

Corporate Communications

Corporate communication documents (including
annual report, interim report, notice of meeting,
circular and proxy form) would be provided to
shareholders in plain language and in both English
and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders have the right to
choose the language (either English or Chinese) or
means of receipt of the corporate communications
(in hard copy or through electronic means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst
other things, in particular, their email addresses
to the Company in order to facilitate timely and
effective communications.

Corporate Website

Information on the Company’s investor relations
website (ir.cabbeen.com) is updated on a regular
basis.
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(iv)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Corporate communications are posted on the
Company website as soon as practicable following
their publication on the website of Stock Exchange.
Such information includes, but not limited to,
financial statements, results announcements, ESG
reports, circulars and notices of general meetings
and associated explanatory documents.

All presentation materials provided in conjunction
with the Company’s annual and interim results
announcement will be made available on the
Company’s investor relations website as soon as
practicable after their release.

All press releases issued by the Company would be
made available on the Company’s investor relations
website as soon as practicable after their releases.

A dedicated Corporate Governance section is
also available on the Company website, which
included director nomination policy and shareholder
communication policy, and updated on a regular
basis.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend
and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will
be monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and,
if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, the chairmen of Board
Committees or their delegates and external auditor
would, where appropriate, attend annual general
meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.

Annual Report 2021
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(v) Investment Market Communications

Investor/analyst briefings and one-on-one meetings,
roadshows, media interviews, company visits and
marketing activities would be available when and
if appropriate, in order to facilitate communication
between the Company, shareholders and the
investment community.

Directors and employees who have contacts or
dialogues with investors, analysts, media or other
interested outside parties are required to comply
with the disclosure obligations and requirements
under the Company’s information disclosure policy.

The Company continues to promote investor
relations and enhance communication with the
existing shareholders and potential investors. The
Company welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the
Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sulfficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Group has in place a
policy on disclosure of inside information which sets out
the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information. Such policy provides
guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant
employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist
to prevent the Company from breaching the statutory
disclosure requirements. It also includes appropriate
internal control and reporting systems to identify and
assess potential inside information.

(v)
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Key procedures in place include:

° define the requirements of periodic financial
and operational reporting to the Board and
Company Secretary to enable them to assess
inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;

° controls the access to inside information by
employees on a need-to-know basis, and
safeguarding the confidentiality of the inside
information before it is properly disclosed to public;

° procedures of communicating with the Group’s
stakeholders, including shareholders, investors,
analysts, etc. in ways which are in compliance with
the Listing Rules.

The Group has also established and implemented
procedures to handle enquiries from external parties
related to the market rumours and other Group’s affairs.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
Stock Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT =—

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ziming Yang (#5%280), aged 50, is the founder of
the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 3 November 2011. He is the chairman
of the Board of the Company since November 2011
and has been the chief executive officer of the Company
since March 2020. Mr. Yang is primarily responsible
for overall corporate strategies, planning and business
development, and leads the Group’s design and research
and development team.

Mr. Yang first started his fashion and wholesale of apparel
business in April 1992. In October 1997, Mr. Yang began
to design and wholesale Cabbeen branded apparel. Mr.
Yang has over 20 years of experience in design. He has
been one of the most famous designers in China, who
won the award for “Best Menswear Designer’™ (fxf£FE %
:&5HEM) at the China International Fashion Week* (7[5
BREFZEIE) in 2009 and “The 14th China Fashion Design
Top Award”™ (1487 BEEEFT£T85), which is the
top honor in apparel design in China in 2010. Mr. Yang
was accredited as “2010 Quanzhou Economic Figure”
(20105 [E R M 455 A %) and was the member of the 10th
China Young Entrepreneurs Association (51 /&~ B & F
TPEXRBEEE) in 2010. In 2011, he was the honorable
president of Shishi Textile & Garments Commerce
Chamber’s Council (AT ##REESEESZELR)
and a committee member of the 11th Committee of All-
Chlna Youth Federation (FEZ2BBFFHEEET—RE
2Z 8). In 2012, Mr. Yang was the first president of the
Fashion Designers’ Association of Fujian Province* (1824
ARE AT &5 —fE@ € &) and the honorable president
of Quanzhou APEC Commerce Chamber’s Council* (3%
MAPECEBHEHEEEK). In March 2013, Mr. Yang
became the consulting professor of Beijing Institute of
Fashion Technology (At RAREEEEFT). In April 2014, Fujian
Normal University (18R &A% appointed Mr. Yang as
a guest professor. In addition, Mr. Yang is currently the
vice president and a member of the standing committee
and the arts committee of the China Fashion Designers
Association (FEIARFERETENHE). Mr. Yang has been
the vice president of the standing committee of the China
Garment Association* (| Bk 2 173 2) since October 2013,
In April 2013, Mr. Yang was awarded as 2012 Innovative
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person of China textile industry* (2012FF B4h4%1T 2 FE
BIFT AY) by The Association of China Textile Industry*
(FREI#H A T X845 2). In 2015, Mr. Yang was awarded
the “New China Annual Award for Artistic Innovation” (7
FR R E T8I ¥7 4 E K 2¥) by the China Fashion Designers
Association and New China Clothing Industry Innovation
& Development Fund* (P EIRRFEXEIFTERESS).
Since August 2019, Mr. Yang has been a consultant for
the Guangdong branch of the China Fashion Designers
Association. He also participated in the design and
production of the apparel used for the civilian parade held
during the 70th anniversary of the People’s Republic of
China. In 2020, Mr. Yang was awarded as 2020 Best of
the Best Designer of the Year* (218 23%2020[ FE &

B ]), and awarded as Outstanding Individual in Natlonal
Textile and Apparel Industry for Fighting Novel Coronavirus
Epidemic* (ZBI#ITEREI B ARG REMA) by
China National Textile and Apparel Council* (4 Bl %5 4% T
¥4 E). In the same year, he served as the anti-drug
ambassador for Shishi city. In 2021, Mr. Yang was invited
to be the chief costume designer of the “Long March-
5B Y2” and “Long March-7 Y3” rocket launch team, and
became an honorary team member.

Mr. Yang received his EMBA in Sun Yat-Sen University (F°
LR E2) in June 2011. Mr. Yang is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Rongain Ke (f]#5$8) who is also our executive Director.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (R43&), aged 51, is one of the
founding members of the Group and has been an
executive Director of the Company since 18 February
2013. Mr. Ng was the chief executive officer of the
Company from February 2013 to March 2020. He is
responsible for overseeing investor relations and legal
matters of the Company.

Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in various
aspects, including business operation, management,
sales, procurement, financial and human resource. Mr.
Ng obtained his bachelor’s degree in material engineering
majoring in forge craft and equipment from Shanghai Jiao

Tong University (/8% 8AE) in July 1992.
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Mr. Rongqin Ke (f#58R), aged 47, is one of the founding
members of the Group and has been an executive Director
of the Company since 18 February 2013. Mr. Ronggin
Ke is primarily responsible for supply chain and financial
management. Mr. Ke has over 20 years of experience in
various aspects, including manufacturing, product design
and research and development and procurement.

Mr. Ke obtained his diploma certificate in business
administration from Hunan University of Technology (43
g LK) in January 2008. Mr. Ke was accredited as
“2011-2012 Top Ten Professional Managers of Apparel
Industry in Guangdong Province™ (2011-2012F EEHRE
AREETTE HEBZELIEA) in August 2012, He completed
the EMBA program at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University (1 1L A 22285 £65) in June 2013.

Mr. Rongqin Ke is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ziming Yang.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui (R ), aged 53, is an independent
non-executive Director and was appointed to the Board
on 18 February 2013. Mr. Tsui has over 20 years of
extensive experience in auditing and accounting, including
experience from corporations and an international
accounting firm. Mr. Tsui joined Ju Teng International
Holdings Limited (EREIERZRRAR A F]) (stock code:
3336) in August 2004 and has been the company’s
executive director and chief financial officer since its
listing in the Stock Exchange and served as the company
secretary from August 2004 to March 2017.

He has also respectively been an independent non-
executive director of Shenguan Holdings (Group) Limited
(rE A% (EE)ABRAR]) (stock code: 829) since
September 2009 and Intron Technology Holdings Limited
(BRI AR A ) (stock code: 1760) since July
2018, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tsui was also an independent non-executive director
of 361 Degrees International Limited (361 BIE AR A
A)) (stock code: 1361) from September 2012 to May 2019
and SITC International Holdings Company Limited (&%
BN BR A ) (stock code: 1308) from September
2010 to December 2020.
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Mr. Tsui obtained his bachelor’s degree of business in
accounting from Curtin University of Technology in August
1992 and his master’s degree of corporate governance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2007. Mr. Tsui has been a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 1997, a
member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand since June 2000, and a member of CPA Australia
since September 1996. He has also been a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since
December 2007 .

Mr. Honghui Chen (FRZ 1), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director and was appointed to the Board
on 18 February 2013. Mr. Chen has nearly 30 years
of extensive experience teaching universities in the
fields of management, economics and corporate social
responsibility. From July 1993 to June 2003, Mr. Chen
worked in Wuhan University of Science and Technology,
primarily teaching management and economics. From
July 2008 till now, Mr. Chen has worked in Sun Yat-Sen
University, primarily teaching courses including strategic
management and corporate social responsibility. Mr. Chen
had been granted the title of deputy professor from April
2004 to July 2008 and has been subsequently granted the
title of professor since July 2008.

Mr. Chen was the deputy dean of Lingnan College in
Sun Yat-Sen University (1L K222 RIFTE) from
November 2007 to March 2012 and the chairman of
the Department of Economics and the Department
of Management at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University* (FILARSEMERLHEERRZLEBHERE
ZE1E) from February 2008 to April 2018. Mr Chen has
been the director of the Research Center for Corporate
Social Responsibility at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University* (FILKRZEEERMET ST EHTH L
F1F) since July 2009. From 2004 till now, Mr. Chen has
done various researches on the topics of corporate social
responsibility and strategic management and economics
efficiency, which were subsidies by the PRC or local
government. The essay written by Mr. Chen in 2007 was
accredited as the Second Prize of The Philosophy and
Society Science Outstanding Achievement in Guangdong
Province* (ER & B2 2R 2EFHR -FH).
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Mr. Chen has been the independent director of Guangzhou
Grandbuy Co., Ltd.) (SZSE stock code: 002187) since
September 2016 and of China National Accord Medicines
Corporation Limited (BIZ:&EE—BEERHBRA
7)) (8ZSE stock code: 000028) since April 2017, both
companies are (BEMMEBRMNBRAA listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chen obtained the Qualification of Teacher of the PRC
in 1996. He also obtained his doctoral degree in enterprise
management from Zhejiang University in June 2003.

Mr. Ming Shu Leung (R #1&), aged 46, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 February
2013. Mr. Leung founded an internet private equity fund
Harmony Capital as founding partner in January 2018.
Mr. Leung has been the company secretary of China ITS
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (FEEERBERAIER)ERAT),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1900), since January 2008 and the chief financial officer
of this company from January 2008 to January 2018. He
has also been an independent non-executive director of
Sun King Power Electronics Group Limited (stock code:
580) since March 2017 and Renrui Human Resources
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 6919) since
November 2019, both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Leung has joined Glory Star New Media
Group Limited, a company listed on NASDAQ (stock code:
GSMG.US), as an independent director in February 2020.
He was also an independent non-executive director of
Comtec Solar Systems Group Limited (#5472 A58E
RiFEEAR A R) (stock code: 712) from June 2008 to
February 2021.
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Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in the areas
of corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Leung started
his professional career at PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong as an auditor in 1998. He then worked at
the global corporate finance division of Arthur Andersen
& Co. in Hong Kong, which subsequently merged with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, until December 2000. From
July 2001 to February 2003, Mr. Leung also worked as
a business consultant in Market Catalyst International
(Hong Kong) Limited, where he advised companies on
issues of strategy, organization and operations. Mr. Leung
then spent approximately three years from February
2003 to January 2006 at CDC Corporation, a NASDAQ-
listed company, as a senior manager in the mergers and
acquisitions department, and as the chief financial officer
of China.com Inc., a subsidiary of CDC Corporation and
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. From February
2006 to October 2006, Mr. Leung served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Xinwei Telecom Technology
Co., Ltd., a related party of KEEEEHEMMD AR A A
(Datang Telecom Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed
on The Shanghai Stock Exchange) which is engaged in
the development of telecommunication standard and
manufacture of telecommunication equipment. From
November 2006 to January 2008, he served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Lingtu Spacecom Technology
Co., Ltd (StREEEZARKARAF), a subsidiary of
Beijing Lingtu Software Co., Ltd (It REE &G ITA
R A7), a PRC digital mapping and navigation software
company.

Mr. Leung obtained his bachelor’s degree in arts with
first class honor in accountancy from The City University
of Hong Kong in June 1998 and a master’s degree in
accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (FCCA) and a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lai Wah Wong (ERE %), aged 47, is the chief financial
officer of the Group. Ms. Wong is also the company
secretary and one of the authorized representatives of the
Company. Ms. Wong joined the group in April 2012 and is
primarily responsible for overall financial management and
company secretarial affairs and coordination of investor
relations. Ms. Wong has over 20 years of experience in
auditing, tax and financial management. Prior to joining
us, she had worked in international accounting firms and
other companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree
of arts in accountancy at The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1997 and master’s degree of science in
financial analysis at The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2014. She is a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are wholesaling and
retailing of branded menswear and related accessories
in the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, aggregate
sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers of
apparel products accounted for 7.6% (2020: 8.0%) and
27.8% (2020: 24.4%), respectively, of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers of apparel products accounted for 6.3%
(2020: 5.9%) and 27.8% (2020: 24.4%), respectively, of
the Group’s total purchases from suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five financial years is set out on
page 239 of the annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 98 to 238 of the annual
report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group are set out in note 26 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB45.3 million.

DIVIDEND

On 2 August 2021, the Company declared an interim
dividend of HK8.5 cents (2020: HK7.6 cents) per ordinary
share for the six months ended 30 June 2021. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HKB.4 cents (2020: HK5.3 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB1.3 million (2020: RMB15.6 million).
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-
current assets (including investment properties, other
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets) are
set out in notes 11, 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business overview and financial performance

The review of the Group’s business and financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
provided in the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2021

FRENEE

IRBDEE (BRBRIKEME B4 - BE
REREREE) NEBEREMEEFIFTH

RERE M RERMIFE11 12 %13

B
AR BIRAFREEFITHRAR G P F &M
26 °

BE  HEXKROEATMHLETHE
&

BE-_Z-—F+-A=1+—HItEE &2
RIS E A B AR EER - BRskHEAR
NEE] ETHES ©

S5Ol R

EBOERMERE
HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE A
AEEXEB LM BRBENLRBESENAFR[E
BEwmEotT] —& -
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Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business
operations of the Group, some of which are inherent to
fashion business and some are from external sources.
Major risks are summarized below.

(i)

(i)

Fashion risk

Our success depends on our ability to define
products trends and anticipate, gauge and react to
changing consumer demands in a timely manner.
Failure to anticipate and respond timely to changing
consumer preferences could lead to lower sales
and excess inventory levels. With respect to each
design concept, it is important to have the right
volume of stocks and strike the right balance in the
mix between fashion basics and the latest trends.
To track the acceptance of our fashion concept
in the market closely, we introduce products in
different batches throughout the season and will
further shorten the product development cycle in
order to reduce the lead time between production
and delivery to customers. In addition, shopping
patterns and the length of product seasons can vary
in different parts of mainland China. Fashion designs
which are popular in one province of mainland China
at a given time may not be as popular in another
local market.

Intense competition

We compete not only with local Chinese apparel
brands, but also with other international fashion
brands. Areas of competition include product
designs, production costs, marketing programs,
customer services. If we do not respond timely to
our competitors, our costs may increase or the
consumer demand for our products may decline
and our revenue and profits would decrease.
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(1N

(iv)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Macroeconomic and social environment

The risk exists that negative macroeconomic
changes may result in negative changes in the
business environment. Fashion products may be
considered as discretionary items for customers.
Slower consumer spending may result in reduced
demand for our products, reduced orders from our
distributors, order cancellations, higher discounts,
increased inventories, lower revenue and margins. It
is therefore important that the Group is aware of any
such changes of economic environment and adjusts
its store opening plan, buying volume and business
plan under different market conditions.

In addition, if any event which materially and
adversely affect the social environment of the
markets where we operate arises, such as the
outbreak of novel coronavirus in the PRC in January
2020, such event may cause a significant impact on
our ability to operate business in a normal manner.
Such event may cause disruptions to our normal
business activities, manufacturing of products by us
and/or our suppliers, logistics involved in distributing
our products, among other aspects of our business.
The Group’s operating results and financial condition
may be materially and adversely affected as a result.

Supply chain

We operate manufacturing facilities in Fujian, the
PRC for producing some of our core products. We
still depend upon independent manufacturers to
produce majority of our products and materials. Any
disruption in the supply of fabric, raw materials and
products from suppliers may cause problems in
our supply chain. We have no long-term contracts
with any of our suppliers and we may need to
compete with other companies for fabrics, raw
materials and apparel products. Nevertheless, we
have developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our vendors so as to minimize the impact
from any supply disruptions and ensure we can
locate alternative suppliers of comparable quality
at a reasonable price all the time. For the year
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ended 31 December 2021, 27.8% (2020: 24.4%)
of our products were produced by our top five
suppliers and we have at least three years’ business
relationship with these suppliers.

Financial conditions of our distributors

We extend credit to our distributors based on as
assessments of their financial conditions, repayment
history and sales performance of the retail outlets
operated by them, generally without requiring
collateral. To assist in the scheduling of production
of our products, our customers could place orders
four to five months ahead of delivery under our
sales fair ordering system. These advance orders
may be cancelled and the risk of cancellation may
increase when dealing with distributors struggling
with financial difficulties. A slowing economy could
also adversely affect the financial conditions of our
customers, which in turn could have an adverse
effect on our results of operation. In addition,
product sales are dependent in part on an appealing
store environment to attract consumers, which
requires continuing investments by distributors.
Distributors that experience financial difficulties may
fail to make such investments and result in lower
sales and orders for our products.

Information system

We are dependent on information technology
systems and networks, including the internet and
third-party hosted services across many of our
operating activities, including sales and distribution,
ordering and purchases, sales and distribution,
inventory management in all retail outlets,
e-commerce business, customer relationship
management, digital marketing and financial
reporting. Any material disruption or slowdown of
our IT systems, including a disruption or slowdown
caused by our failure to successfully upgrade our
systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks
could cause a loss of data or operation interruption.
Therefore, we invest continuously in our IT and
ERP system so as to keep up with the technology
security and availability and integrity of critical
operation data.
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(vii) Reputational risk

Cabbeen is one of the leading Chinese fashion
causal designer brands and our success depends
on our ability to maintain and enhance our brand
image and reputation. Maintaining and promoting
our brands will depend on our product design,
marketing efforts and product quality. In addition,
effect of our marketing activities depends on
our ability to adapt to the rapid changing media
environment, including social media and online
advertising campaigns. Should existing and potential
customers lose confidence in Cabbeen/or one of
its brands, or in the industry in general, because
of negative publicity, the Group’s sales would
decrease. To safeguard and manage the brand,
it is important that the Group continues to uphold
its brand value, corporate image, product safety
and maintain high business ethics. In addition,
it is also important that communication with our
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders is
accurate, transparent and reliable.

(viii) Weather

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which
our retail stores, suppliers and customers are
located could adversely affect our operating results
and financial condition.

Key Relationships

(i)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Employees

To remain competitive in the retail apparel industry,
we must attract, develop, and retain skilled
employees in our design, merchandising, supply
chain, marketing, and other functions.
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We strive to motivate employees with a clear
career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. We provide
pre-employment and on-the-job training and
development opportunities to our staff members.
The training programs cover areas such as
managerial skills, sales and production, customer
services, quality control, sales fairs planning,
workplace ethics and training of other areas relevant
to the industry.

We conduct employee engagement survey across
its Hong Kong and mainland China operations once
a year. We seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from our employees for enhancing
workplace productivity and harmony.

In addition, we offer competitive remuneration
packages to employees and have also adopted
share option schemes to recognize and reward the
contribution of the employees to the growth and
development of the Group.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our vendors and take great care
to ensure that they share our commitment to
quality and ethics. We carefully select our suppliers
and require them to satisfy certain assessment
criteria including track record, experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high-quality
products and quality control effectiveness. We also
require our suppliers to comply with our anti-bribery
policy.

(i)
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(ifi) Distributors

We sell our products to end customers through
third-party distributors. We work with our
distributors like we are business partners and
ensure we share the view for upholding our brand
value and customer services, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to
drive sales growth. We and our distributors reach an
agreement on retail sales target and store expansion
plan before they place their orders. We require
our distributors and sub-distributors to comply
with our retail policies, including but not limited to
nationwide product retail selling price, standard
store images, promotional activities and use of our
ERP system. We also monitor the financial condition
and repayment history of our distributors, and retail
sales performance of the stores operated by them.

(iv) Customers

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse
range of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality
fashion with our various brands to our customers.
We also stay connected with our customers. We
maintain our VIP database and have ongoing
communications with our customers through mainly
social media. We also work with our distributors
and provide training to their key sales personnel to
provide quality and value-added customer services
at retail channel.

Environmental Policies

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. We strive to minimize our environmental impact
by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials. We also require our own
factory and factories of our suppliers to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and
rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the relevant Chinese regulators.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in mainland China
and Hong Kong.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2021 and at any time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ziming Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Siu Keung Ng

Mr. Rongain Ke

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui

Mr. Honghui Chen

Mr. Ming Shu Leung
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Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2019 subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors
are revealed on note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out
on pages 59 to 65 of the annual report. In accordance
with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Rongain Ke and Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui will retire from
the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

During the tenure of office, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui has
performed as independent non-executive Directors to the
satisfaction of the Board. The Board is of the opinion that
Mr. Tsui maintains his independence even if he has served
the Board for more than nine years, and believes that his
valuable knowledge and experience continue to generate
significant contribution to the Board, the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There had been no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest
in any competing business with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of the
Controlling Shareholders has complied with the non-
compete undertaking given by them to the Company
under the Deed of Non-competition on 8 October 2013.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all
the undertakings thereunder have been complied with
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their
offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the year under review. The Company
has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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ETEHE(R)

Long positions in the Company RELFHHFE

Number of

underlying
shares Approximate
Number of comprised percentage of
Name of director shares held in options® Total  shares in issue®
BRERY R HERTRH
Exps FEERAEE HBRRGHE @ st BAEAL O
Mr. Ziming Yang?e CEL el 458,999,209 - 458,999,209 68.65%
Mr. Siu Keung Ng Rt 2,926,000 900,000 3,826,000 0.5722%
Mr. Ronggin Ke RIS E 3,850,000 700,000 4,550,000 0.6805%

)

Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.

Q)

BK - AERTEHGRAEELERARE
B Bt HRAZERER/NBIK  FERT
M= REmn 2 MR T IEA R -

@) Multiplus International Limited (“Multiplus”) is owned as to  (2) LHEBRAERAR((BE ) ANEELLTEE
99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr. Ziming Yang. By virtue of 00% e MG ERBAER A 1% E s - BB
a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by and between BELZTHBERPLEEMIIVBHAZS ——F
Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang in addition to the voting right A=+ —BMRERZE  RIBEPEENEE
attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang holds in Multiplus, he also FEBRMDFTIEREN - BRI EREEGTTER
has the right to control the exercise of the voting rights attached MBEZ T /AN EE2 IG5 TR ER -
to all the shares in Multiplus held by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, bt BERBEERRANEGZFREND I
Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in DR ER -
which Multiplus is interested.

@) Mr. Ziming Yang is the spouse of Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr.  (3) BEPEERNBEZTMRE - Bt HEE
Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Ms. WRANFBEZ T BN BROPHES
Liting Ke is interested. TS o

(4) These represent interest in underlying shares of the Share Option (4 I ARARE M ERESE (FE R T M
Schemes granted (as defined below) by the Company. AR n R o

5) Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company  (5) ERARARZZEZ—F+ZA=T—HHEH
as at 31 December 2021. 668,593,000 I B 21 TR A FTE ©

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none B EXHEBEEN RZTEZ_—F+H=+—

B BESEENRARAEBTRABURESE
EFENBEARAKNR B SEERBBER (E
& R ES MG HRPIZEXVER) i - R
0 R B A LN AR RIRIRE 75 M
S {5PI% 352 1R7AF B 2 BRI E I E R
KRR SRIFRETRASITMERNRR R
B 2 P (AT R 2R SOR R

of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

—g=-554 FEABGARLT




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(R)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the persons or corporations
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name Capacity/Nature of interest

B g EEtE

Ms. Liting Ke!"2s!
TR IE A 1R
Acute Result?

IR EE S B ER

Beneficial owner

B BRBEAA

Ascend Fame® Beneficial owner

FEe EREAA

Multiplus® Beneficial owner

Lo BEaBEAA

(1) Ms. Liting Ke is the spouse of Mr. Ziming Yang. Accordingly, Ms.

Liting Ke is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Mr.
Ziming Yang is interested.

) Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.

) Multiplus is owned as to 99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr.
Ziming Yang. By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated 31
July 2012 by and between Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang, in
addition to the voting right attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang
holds in Multiplus, he also has the right to control the exercise
of the voting rights attached to all the shares in Multiplus held
by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Multiplus is interested.

(4) Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2021.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2021

FERFRHEZRRE

i

F+-—A=t—8" MTAiii

BFEFXARAETETHRAR)RAR
Bty R ABRAR (D h A IR B %&%f%%

XV EBER 2 [ 37 BMESR R AN A B FE SR AC 8%
IR E 5 M EE 15155 336 (AR E

ATHEE

sfmERSAR -

Interest in a controlled corporation/Interest of spouse

Q)

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Shares interest®
FREMLD

BHEE Bokk®
458,999,209 68.65%
296,249,209 44.31%
52,500,000 7.85%
78,750,000 11.78%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
the Directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
Group.

Pre-IP0 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and
attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth or success of the Group. Options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 8,520,000 shares of the
Company (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) were granted
on 8 October 2013. The exercise price per Share is
HK$2.024, being 80% of the initial public offering price. No
further option could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme after 8 October 2013. All Pre-IPO Share
Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
may be exercised during the option period commencing
from the first anniversary of the Listing Date to the date
falling 10 years from the grant date of the Pre-IPO Share
Options and can only be exercised in the following manner:

ETEHE(R)

Br EXEEEN R —F+_A=1+—
B BFTTMBETMAEMALSSEERA
NEIR D RABERO P EEREE S LER
BIZEXV 556 2} 3 73 BRI SLZB A1 AN A &) 4 BB 3k
SN IREF R EAE GG 336 IR ERE T
BEEMMERESAR -

BB A B

RAARIRZZE—=FTANBRAE R FHE
ERIBREGE((ERDERENBRES
8 ) MEER T E ([ BRERTE ) - RYEASE
BEELERNAERSEERHIE LY -

HRAMBEAEAERE
RAaRZE—=F+A\BHEMNE R MHE
EREREE - EERBETEERALTA
THERL - R REREHAEENKIR  BR
IR NBEE N HHEBEERSETEAE
ErRR - ERIKNENHEEEATHA
Hia A R ERNRHERER - R —=
FTANE - 2R ARES 8,520,000 &
KRRz ERE(BERAHBEAER
o BRERMNZITEER2.024 57T © BT
HRFABEEEL0% - R_TE—=F1+A/\HE
PARBE R AR ERBREST SR E A M
fERiE - TAEREBE R ARZEEERETE
R R E R AR E B IE AR A A B AR i B
(BELTHHAEAFEEI A AREERRER
ERLAHERTFEER){TE - BEIZN
TAHEITE -

—g=-554 FEABGARLT

81




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(R)

()  30% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be ()  HEBEXAFRESHBRER30% AR
exercised from the first anniversary of the Listing IR EAFRITE
Date;

(i)  60% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be (i) SEEXAMZEEFBREN60% IR
exercised from the second anniversary of the Listing T ABERBEAFRITE &
Date; and

(i)  100% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be (i) &EBXAFEEHERERN100% 7]
exercised from the third anniversary of the Listing R ETBEB=EFRITE ©
Date.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December R_-ZE-—F+-A=+—HEHEAIRHAZEEH

2021 are as follows: BEAREREIBANT
Exercised
Outstanding during  Lapsed during Cancelled during Outstanding
asat theyearended theyearended  the yearended asat
1January  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
i E E E R

—EC-E —EC-E —EC-E —EC-E _E--E
~A-B  ZAZt-8  tZAZt-B fIBEf-B t2ASt-E

Name 1 MATE  LEEETE  LEECAN LEECHH HATE
Directors EZ

M. Siu Keung Ng LY 900000 - - : 900,000
Mr. Ronggin Ke FBSEE 700,000 - - - 700,000
Others it 1,150,000 - - - 1,150,000
Total ) 2,750,000 - - - 2,750,000

The total number of shares available for issue under the —1RIE B X A5 EERIERER 817 T 1T
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 2,750,000, representing R {7 #221/52,750,000 i - 16N & A AL
approximately 0.41% of the total number of Company’s Al E 1T {5 42 21 (B 668,593,000 A% A% 17 ) 47
issued shares as at the date of this report, i.e. 668,593,000 0.41% °

shares.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8
October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible
persons for their past contributions and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships
with, such eligible persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject
to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme
in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing on 28 October 2013.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
any proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
Directors or proposed Director (including non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
(the “Share Options”) and any other schemes of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date, i.e. 70,000,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised;
however, the Board may, subject to the provisions of the
Listing Rules, in its absolute discretion when offering the
grant of an Option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as it may think fit. Participants
of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company a nominal consideration in total HK$1.00 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 30 days after the
offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a share;

(b) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the offer
date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five Business Days (as defined in the
Listing Rules) immediately preceding the offer date.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, there
was no outstanding share options under the Share Option
Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
56,600,000, representing approximately 8.47% of the
Company’s issued share capital, and the remaining life
of the Share Option Scheme was about 2 years and
8 months. No share options was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes organized by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC, and operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period
of the Group.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been audited by KPMG, who
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ziming YANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 February 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Cabbeen Fashion Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 98 to 238,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) =——

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BENRE (18)

Revenue recognition
W TR
Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 154.
DR E IR F N2 R E 154 BB S 5THE ©
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BERERSE EERPHNEEGE
Revenue principally comprises sales of apparel | Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
goods to distributors and via consignees. revenue included the following:
W FEBRBRNHEPMERREFEERES | MM RERNEZREFBEATHE :
& o

o assessing the design, implementation and
Each year, the Group enters into a framework operating effectiveness of management’s key
distribution agreement or a consignment internal controls over revenue recognition;
agreement with each distributor or consignee A E IR G A MU s HE TR A R 52 R B 1R I YRR
and manufactures and sells its products in &~ BHERIBVERK ;
accordance with the terms of separate purchase
orders. o inspecting agreements with distributors and
ESESFHER D HEY IR IIELD H consignees, on a sample basis, to understand
FERERE - UIREBSRKER EREREER the terms of the sales transactions including
HEHREM ° the terms of delivery and acceptance,

applicable rebates arrangements and any sales
For sales to distributors, once the products are return arrangements to assess the Group’s
collected from the designated warehouse by the revenue recognition criteria with reference to
distributor, the control of the goods is considered the requirements of the prevailing accounting
to have been transferred to the distributor and standards;
revenue is recognised at that point. RERAEEREES HE RAHEEO R - A
HADEEELNEENS Em—BEHSHEE THEER NGRS BRI REXH K
RIETRERN  EHEmNEGIRERREE o EANETH REREEREZH A
BT oiEn - W ZRERERRE o M2ZHITEHERNARE G EEEA KR
HERRIRZE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) =——
B BENR S (18)

Revenue recognition
W ER
Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 154.

D E RSN 2 RE 1564 AR E5HHE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BEREZSEE EERPHNEESE
For sales via consignees, once the products are | assessing, on a sample basis, whether
sold to end users by the consignee, the control of revenue transactions recorded during the
the goods is considered to have been transferred financial year had been recognised in the
to the consignee and revenue is recognised at appropriate financial period by comparing the
that point. The Group receives confirmations transactions selected with relevant underlying
from consignees on a monthly basis of both the documentation, including goods delivery notes
transaction amounts and balances due to the or monthly confirmations from consignees and
Group. the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
REBREEIEFLANEEMS - Em—BEEBR consignment agreements;
HEETRmAFE  AEEROZEGIEFEAD BREAEEFBEBMEXSHEEAIIFX
S TREE  WRZRHERERNE -  E5E - BRESENIXREREENEGAERER
BRAEREKRFEREEAR S HELENESERIE %ﬁ%ﬁkﬁﬁ%ﬁ%wﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ FHE R BT
ERRERE - FREANRHENRRRZHEE N ES 88 EE
AR
We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key | o assessing, on a sample basis, whether
performance indicators of the Group and because specific revenue transactions around the
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the financial year end had been recognised in the
timing of recognition of revenue by management appropriate financial period by comparing the
to meet specific targets or expectations. transactions selected with relevant underlying
BN RERY AEREZEIE  BRlE documentation, including goods delivery notes
s E%lﬁ’]ﬁ%fk%?ﬁ?ﬁﬁz— CMERSRE or monthly confirmations from consignees and
B E AEDIFE B 13578 A M 1 4% Uk 25 e TR R ] the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
HI[E B =B o consignment agreements;

BREANEEFBEBAEISHEEAIIFX
" BREESSEIREREFNTABRIRER
78S B A P S B9 85 & 16K - AT R B IR
FRERAMENHTERRZRZHEEERNEE N
BN HARIRERR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BENRE (18)

Revenue recognition

W ER

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 154.
R BB TS IRAE N 7L 2 R E 164 EHIZEHEE

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
FAREREE EERPHNEEGE
° assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales

rebates during the financial year had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period
by reconciling the movements in sales rebates
accruals, recalculating the sales rebates
recognised during the financial year on the
basis of the terms as set out in the distribution
or consignment agreements and comparing
sales rebates payments during the financial
year to confirmations from distributors or
consignees and other relevant underlying
documentation;

REAEEFZ B AETIHELNEE - RIE
2 S EH 17 5 P B Y IR R B R E T R B
ERERHHEERH - MR B FEE R H
EEHRERE 2 HE RO ERE &
HBA X SHERTBRFEERNHE
B2 A EREE O R ERERER

o identifying significant credit notes issued and
sales returns from the sales ledger after the
financial year end and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the
related revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period in accordance with
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

BRI B E R R B BRI AT 3 E’JEE
ERENHERE - WinEEA X

At =S ERBERITES EE'JE’J%E
EREE IR AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) =——
B BENR S (18)

Revenue recognition

W ER

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 154.
R A B TS IRA N 7L 2 R E 164 EHI@EHEE

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BAREREE EERPHNEESE
° inspecting significant manual adjustments

to revenue during the reporting period,
enquiring of management as to the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BENBERANH WS IIENEEFERHE
mEREERAELEAARNIER M EHEAE
S5 ERAR R S X -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BENRE (18)

Valuation of inventories

FEHE

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 145.
LR E R RN 17 R 145 BRI SEHEUR °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
FAREREE EERPHNEEGE

Sales of inventories in the fashion industry can | Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
be volatile with consumer demand changing | inventories included the following:

according to current fashion trends. B FEEENEZEFEEATIE ¢
PR B % T o R PR A MO A 8 R , | N
B BTN E A A I E) o o assessing whether the inventory provisions at

the reporting date were calculated in a manner
consistent with the Group’s inventory provision
policy by recalculating the inventory provisions
based on percentages and other parameters
in the Group’s inventory provision policy and
considering the application of the Group’s
inventory provision policy with reference to

The Group typically sells or disposes of off-
season inventories at a markdown from the
original price to make room for new season
inventories in its stores. Accordingly, the actual
future selling prices of some inventories may fall
below their purchase costs.

BEE—RITELENRRIBEEGFE - LRESE the requirements of the prevailing accounting
ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ*?fﬁéﬁ =R o EUt - B TEENER standards;
KR EBR e E R EIRER A o BEEEEFERBREN AL REMBH

B EFERBI2ERITEAERINMATE
ZRESEFERBHRRNER - BUFER
BERMNGEERBROREESETERE
BR— B G E

Management considers several factors in
determining the appropriate level of inventory
provisions, including inventory ageing, historical
rates of sales at normal price levels and at | 4
markdown prices, and the channels available for
selling off-season inventories.
EEENETEENTERBKIRERZERA
= BREFERK - EAIE%ET%KLTL&&MEE
REE L HE $LA&%’§ BEFENR AR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items
in the inventory ageing report were classified
within the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing the barcode tags for the inventory
items selected with relevant purchase
documents;

REAREEF BB AMEFEERNKIEEE
EARBAERE X - FHAFERERWRETANIER
ERBRAEEREAER

° performing a retrospective review by comparing
the carrying values of inventories as at 31
December 2020 with sales prices achieved
during the current year, to assess the reliability
of management’s write-down and provisioning
process;
BRE_E_EFT_A=T—HZEFER
BEREARFE 2 EEETHER - (EHEH MUA
%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂ&%ﬁmﬁfZT E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) =——
B BENR S (18)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 145.
R A B TEIRAN A 17 R E 145 RIS EHEE -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BEREZSEE EERPHNEESE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key | evaluating the Group’s inventory provision
audit matter because of the significant judgement policy by comparing management’s expectation
exercised by management in determining the of the amounts of inventories which are unlikely
appropriate levels of inventory provisions which to be sold in the foreseeable future at current
involves predicting the amounts of inventories prices and the corresponding expectation of
which will be unsold at the end of each season markdowns with historical sales amounts and
and the markdowns necessary to sell such off- markdown data for the current and prior years
season inventories on a discounted basis through provided by management; and

outlets and other channels in future years. Both BB EREE AR A B 2L E Al
of these factors can be inherently uncertain and ERHENTFEHENTERIEENITNER
could be subject to management bias. HEBEMRENENRATFENELIE
B FERE REREZSZR  BRAEIEE EHHELINEE  FAEEEENFERER
EETESONTFEREKFRITEERHE - ® M

ERSREARSEZERRAENTFEHE RN
RREFEBRITHEREMEBERENEZEH | o enquiring of the management and senior

TEEMZELNITN - ZZERAZHEFEEET members of the sales team about any expected
HEM - WA X BERERITFTER changes in plans for markdowns or disposals

of off-season inventories and comparing the
carrying value of inventories to actual prices for
sales transactions subsequent to the reporting
date on a sample basis.
mMEREMEEEGNSREBRABAMEH
P RIEBFFEEINEAERES - I
BREAEENREFEREERRSE B RIEE
RBNBERERS ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIARZHENHE (1])

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Annual Report 2021

HeEMBERRUIIHAMBERREK
{FImE Lt 5% HH a0 iX BB 3R o5

SEAHEMBERIRERT - b ERBESF
BREAESNAEER  BETREGRE TR
R EFPIR UL T R BRA R L o

R A BT HEME 0F R AR E B
G - RTHRMENER AR RO
5 -
RERGAMBREMS - RONELRM0E
HAER - R T B AR R TR A BT
BERABMEB B PRENERFLEX
R - AT EAS RO -

B R PIERD TR TIERA/EME R IR
BARSERRM - RAARSE L —FF - B
S BB E IR ©

EFNGRSMEBERRARENRE

SRR REERSEAEESRMNE
BRI ¥R B R BB R RUEDI B EE AR E 4R
HPEEMARMI R EFEEMHHRE - I
BEEEARRAESRAMBRERLTENEH
MEBIES] - ARG S M BRROBRITFE
P EFE S SR M B A B AFERIR AL -

EREURAMBMRE - EFARENE &
SESELENRE)  URBERNEREEH
MERGER) - RIFEZTHEEHESES
8 R ILEE - IR 2N EE A ERRA]
TTOHDE - BRIZEFARANGEL S SER
MEEhE




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) =——

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BENRE (18)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) =——

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 February 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GERRRAMZARER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F—=—F 1+ =-A=+—HI F)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA #5171 )

2021 2020
—EB-—5 —E-THF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEE AR®T T AR®ET T
Revenue W 2 1,372,662 1,288,422
Cost of sales SHER A (743,825) (679,957)
Gross profit EX 628,837 608,465
Personal protective (BN e
equipment revenue g 33,865 526,091
Personal protective (BN =%
equipment cost 8 (31,840) (485,189)
Other income HAUA 5 68,645 84,015
Selling and distribution HE R DX
expenses (290,618) (201,073)
Administrative and other TR EMEERY
operating expenses (153,589) (239,465)
Profit from operations K RF 255,300 292,844
Finance costs BhE KA 6(a) (16,179) (19,307)
Share of loss of an associate 7k —EEE & A 7] 2 518 (1,608) (154)
Profit before taxation BRER A% A 6 237,513 273,383
Income tax expense FRS i 7(a) (68,872) (78,342)
Profit for the year F ANz F 168,641 195,041
Attributable to: T &7 :
Equity shareholders of A AR
the Company 164,192 194,209
Non-controlling interests AR i 4,449 832
Profit for the year FREF 168,641 195,041
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED) =———
GERRRAMZERER ()

for the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —F = —F+ A =+—HIFFZF
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA #5177 )

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ibE=s AR®ET T AR®ET T
Other comprehensive FREMZEKE
income for the year
ltem that may be reclassified RIREREEEF DA
subsequently to profit or loss:  F|Ez=HIIER :
— Exchange differences on — BE R E AR SN
translation of the financial XIS IRE
statements of operations HIEE 5 =58
outside the mainland
China 2,733 4r7)
Total comprehensive FRZHWHEETE
income for the year 171,374 194,564
Attributable to: AN & F e -
Equity shareholders of RARERRR
the Company 166,925 193,732
Non-controlling interests FEERR A A 4,449 832
Total comprehensive FRE2EKGZELEE
income for the year 171,374 194,564
Earnings per share BRERN(ARED) 10
(RMB cents)
Basic HAK 24.56 29.05
Diluted e 24.52 29.05

F 1052238 HFTEIMI it A SRR AKX
25 o BEEMNAR R ERRRARSFEH
KT EE 26(b) ©

The notes on pages 105 to 238 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 26(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBIRE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A #5517 )

2021 2020
—E-_—F —ZE-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LhE AR®T T ARBTT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REYE 11 103,118 103,012
Property, plant and Mz - BB &R
equipment 12 266,439 205,123
Intangible assets BEEE 13 43,320 38,295
Prepayments for acquisiton — WEBME K& E 2
of plant and equipment SENE/OE 38,342 40,213
Interest in an associate N 1N ol T 14 47,541 49,149
Deferred tax assets BEIEE E 16(b) 45,596 40,562
Loans to an associate M—EEEARREER 29 31,502 -
e 575,858 | 476,354
Current assets REBEE
Inventories "BE 17 530,955 388,293
Trade and other receivables & 5 Kk E b EUFKIA 18 711,074 613,346
Deposits with banks with REIEAR® =& A
original maturity date HIERTTIF 3K
over three months 285,000 293,357
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITFRK 19 114,143 92,397
Cash and cash equivalents ~ R& MIREFEY 20 251,671 529,037
SRR SRR 1,892,843 | 1,916,430
Current liabilities REBAE
Bank borrowings RITER 21 251,174 93,612
Trade and other payables B 5 M H A e FRIE 22 717,325 651,785
Current taxation BNEAFR I8 16(a) 33,306 49,494
Lease Liabilities HEAE 23 13,868 2,903
R PO 1,015673 | 797,794
_Netcurrentassets nBEEFE | 877,170 | 1,118,636
Total assets less current EEAERABHERS
liabilities 1,453,028 1,594,990
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank borrowings RITIER 21 - 258,532
Lease liabilities HERE 23 27,708 6,663
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMIBRE 16(b) - 63
RS SO 27,708 | 265,258

100 Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2021




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) =——
REMBIRE (1])

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN #5177 )

2021 2020
—E-—5 —E-TH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ibE=s AR®ET T AR®ET T
NET ASSETS EERE 1,425,320 1,329,732
CAPITAL AND RESERVES &7 f#{# 26
Share capital &N 5,214 5,214
Reserves G 1,406,775 1,316,421
Total equity attributable AAFERBRE
to equity shareholders PE(L 4 E
of the Company 1,411,989 1,321,635
Non-controlling interests  JEIERRfEZ 13,331 8,097
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 1,425,320 1,329,732
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEFEeR_ZET-_—_F_-_A-_+—B#LERKE
directors on 21 February 2022. RET)E -

Mr. Ziming Yang

Mr. Rongqin Ke

BERALE FIFREER B4
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Executive Director
TTBABAFHTEE HITESE

The notes on pages 105 to 238 form part of these financial
statements.

£ 105 £ 238 B FTHIM T R FH S HMAR AKX
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeHRERR

for the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —F ——#F+ _-A=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in Renminbij) (WA B #5177 )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAAERRFER
Capital Non-
Share  Share redemption  Capital Statutory Exchange Refained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserves  reseve  reseve  profits Total interests Total
FER
ha  RHGE REEE EABE ORERE  ENRE  RERR EH ot
Note RMB0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'00  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RWB'000 RMB’OOO RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
it ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETH
As at 1 January 2020 g el 54 91% B4 428 53500 (2684 1096825 1204741 31081 128582
Changes in equity W-B-8k
for 2020: NERSH:
Profi for te year 0T . - - - - - - 1420 194209 832 195041
Other comprehensive EREMRENG
income for the year - - - - - [ - {m - {m
Totd comprefensive EMREMALE
__ eomefortevear o TToTooToooosoo M AXQ 18T 8 104564
Dividend decied EERRE 28) - - - - - SRRy 629 - B
Tinsleretweenresenves GEERER - - - ) - T - - -
Foutysetfed sharebesed ~~ BREENER
fransactions ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ]x% 6b) - - - 5576 - - - 57 - 5075
Appropriaton o BRETRE
statutory resrves - - - - 096 - (1968 - - -
Aequistion of non-controling — YE-ERER AR ER
inleress i a subsidy - - - (9184 - - - {9180 D381 3000
AsatdiDecember 020 H=E-EE+-A=t-R
and 1 January 2021 e 54 9195 3% 0068 75535 (3161) 1214400 1321635 8007 1320732
Changes in equity W3-k
for 2021: NERSH:
Prof for the year A - - - - - - 164102 4% 4449 168640
Other comprehenshve EREMEENG
income for the year - - - - - 2,183 - 2183 - 218
Totd comprefensive EMREMGLE
__neomefortbevear ot totomooono 18 16419 166925 4440 1TIT4
Dividend declared BEkE 260) - - - - - - (165M)  (765M) - (165M)
Eouy-seted sharebased ~ BEEHRN
ransactions BARNLS ) - - - - - - - S K I K
Appropriaton to EEThE
stafutory reserves . - - - - 4 E (AT - - -
Capita deducton by FERERTENAS
anon-controing inferest - - - - - - - - (394 (394)
As at 31 December 2021 WoE--F12R=1-A 5214 9,195 B4 20068 142678 (426) 1204878 1411980 13331 1425320
The notes on pages 105 to 238 form part of these financial 58 105 & 238 B R & M1 Ak S M I A
statements. B o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT =—

GRAKINER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —F = —F+ A =+—HIFFZF
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA #5177 )

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PaE AR®ET T AR®ET T
Operating activities TR
Cash generated from operations 48 & & &) FT15IR & 20(b) 85,080 453,605
Income tax paid B ATIEH (88,789) (90,384)
Net cash (used in)/ eEER (A,
generated from Fi8FRE
operating activities (3,709) 363,221
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of BEEZ - BE &
property, plant BB
and equipment (67,262) (80,734)
Payment for the purchase BEEFEEMNK
of intangible assets (3,337) (11,550)
Proceeds from disposal of HEYE - BEX
property, plant and RS RIE
equipment 2,772 1,140
Net decrease of deposits REHHAB=1EA
with banks with original HIERTTIF X
maturity date over B EER
three months 8,357 4,888
Net (increase)/decrease in EEFRITIFN
pledged bank deposits (38hn) R FEE (21,746) 27,427
Loans repaid by an associate i —fEEEE QA REEMNER - 10,000
Loans to an associate ] —fEE L R AR E R (12,100) -
Interest received EYF B 8,636 13,865
Net cash (used in)/generated R&;EE) (FTH), FiEERE
from investing activities (84,680) 15,036

—E--FER

FERGAR QG
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FEHKAER (1)

for the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —&F ——

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA #5171 )

Fr-—A=1—HIFFE

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LhE ARET T ARBTT
Financing activities mMEEE
Proceeds from bank RITIEKFIEEIE
borrowings - 128,666
Repayment of bank BERITEN
borrowings (92,690) (114,000)
Dividends paid ERRE 26(b) (76,571) (63,229)
Interest paid 2RAE (14,580) (17,181)
Payment for acquisition of i) MNE]
non-controlling interests FEIE IR 2R YT K
of subsidiaries - (43,000)
Capital element of lease ENEENERED
rentals paid (4,109) (1,591)
Interest element of lease EfHESFE S
rentals paid (587) 427)
Net cash used in 7l & 5E B Fr
financing activities FRE 20(c) (188,537) (110,762)
Net (decrease)/increase in iﬁﬁ}ifﬁﬁ%f’ )]
cash and cash WD), EmEE
equivalents (276,926) 267,495
Cash and cash equivalents A"—A—HWRERK
at 1 January REeEEY 529,037 266,992
Effect of foreign exchange HNEE b R By o B
rate changes (440) (5,450)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=HA=+—H
at 31 December NWEERASEEY 20(a) 251,671 529,037

The notes on pages 105 to 238 form part of these financial

statements.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK?”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

M50 RO X

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 EEEEE

(a)

aSNEn

&L IR TR IR E A E
% B 55 3 o 28 B (T BB B 75 %
FEA ) MimR o B MR
SEABEHERSFENESR
g ((ERerEAEEE ) R
B FfT B 18 R 0 18] ) B R B A R
R B ER(TEREs
R ) k2l - ZFEMHHRKRIT
HEBERAHEDIHEREER
EARBEHARZMBRAR]
(T &R ) FES LR
BERRBERTE - AEBEMRAE
EETBERBEENT -

B EAEEeCB/HE T
BRI BHREEIER A - %F
ERRNAEERTEFTHEEX
M PIIR PR - 10
JIBERERZEFERETN
ERSBRREHHER - Bk
RERNZEW B ®MRTRBEDN
B SR EE R R E AR E AR

—E- 558 FEARGERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(b)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's
interest in an associate.

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the People's Republic
of China (the "PRC"). RMB is the functional
currency for the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the mainland China. The
functional currency of the Company and the
Company’s subsidiaries outside the mainland
China are Hong Kong dollars.

These financial statements are prepared
on the historical cost basis except that
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies below
(note 1(g)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 30.

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 FESHBR@

(b)

REMERROHEE 2)

EEEERATEBERMERE
BRI BHRRE - AEL A
B~ fAEt RRER - RFHE - A
At RBREFEBRRNER AR
BE - BE WAKRXHZER
T - ZE AT RERRRIDE
RBEER kAR ERIBRMAE
RAEENZHAMASR - MAE
BRBRBEHSEBEABELE B
Hp R BHNEE M B EREE
ML - BERERTBEH BN
Ffbat -

FEMEALEERREFER
Af o FERTERTMETINERZ EE
R HIMR - BB RAEET I e B
MIER - MZIAG T ETRERT
TEZPRMARSEE  AEH
{EET & % HA R ok R R A B

N
=7
e ©

FRAEEBERBERYBHRE
R FIEL BB RRBEKR
TENHE - ARG EE R
EMEBRR - TR M 30

[

it o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBR (@)
(Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies () EBRER
The Group has applied the following AEBE MR EREEE
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB E 5 BIR B 75 R & 2 RIS
to these financial statements for the current FIAFERRE R RS
accounting period: Wk -
. Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS . BB B 15 5 HE RN B 951% »
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest rate R e ETAERI S 39 5% -
benchmark reform — phase 2 R EmERERETIR

B0 5 B 7 5 S B 25 45
BB 5 RS 82 16
ST - FIRE RS

— E R
. Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19- . [ B B 75 3 5 2 I 58 16 5%
related rent concessions beyond 30 BRI —TE-_—FXA
June 2021 =+ B 12 ®yCOVID-1948
AHESR%
Other than the amendment to IFRS 16, the B BB B 75 2R 5 22 RI 56 16 SRIEET
Group has not applied any new standard or AN REBWRERAEMNRE
interpretation that is not yet effective for the A= 5T HARE 8 R A U ¥ 5T ZE Rl
current accounting period. Impacts of the N TE o BB B RS w4 R
adoption of amended IFRSs are discussed BEIARFZEMMmT :

below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16, /nterest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs
from (i) accounting for changes in the basis
for determining contractual cash flows
of financial assets, financial liabilities and
lease liabilities as modifications, and (ii)
discontinuing hedge accounting when an
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an
alternative benchmark rate as a result of
the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR
reform”). The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as
the Group does not have contracts that are
indexed to benchmark interest rates which
are subject to the IBOR reform.

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

1 FESEHER @

(c)

-faged 1E)

Bl BREERE IR - B
PrE aHHERISE 395k « EIPRAL
HREEAUETRE - BRI
WEERIE 43R R EPRR I H
HERIE165RIERTE - FIE
BESE —FER

BEI AR A T 5 Ea et
MERE: ((BETEREE - ©
BEERHEEEBENAORER
ENEENEHNERISTETS
TR RijBRBRITRER
BE ([RITRAERBRE])
A EREEHEREENRERK
B ARIESIHREETERE - %%
BRI B Z S MR EK T
2 FAREE s ER R H
AR FIRITRIEREREFEN
BH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions heyond 30 June 2021
(2021 amendment)

The Group previously applied the practical
expedient in IFRS 16 such that as lessee
it was not required to assess whether
rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
were lease modifications, if the eligibility
conditions are met (see note 1(k)). One of
these conditions requires the reduction
in lease payments affect only payments
originally due on or before a specified time
limit. The 2021 amendment extends this time
limit from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021
amendment in this financial year. There is no
impact on the balance of equity at 1 January
2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 FESHBR@

(d)

BB AR R IFZARE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continueq)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interest, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (note

1))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(l)
(i)). Any acquisition date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

0] the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note

1))

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities
are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 27(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is

held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 1(v/(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBR (@)
(Continued)
(9) Other investments in debt and equity () HtEHEREBEEEHFRS
securities (continued) (%)
Investments other than equity investments PEREZRZILINRSE (Z)
(Continued)

116

fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) - recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(h)

Investment property

Investment properties are buildings and land
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(k)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future
use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are measured initially
at cost. The cost of purchased investment
properties comprises their purchases price
and any direct attributable expenditures.
Investment properties are accounted for
using the cost model and stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss (see note 1(l)(ii)). The cost of investment
properties, less their estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment loss, is
depreciated using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life as follow:

o Interests in remaining term
leasehold land of the lease
o Buildings 20 years

Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(v)(v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESEHER W@
(Continued)
(0 Property, plant and equipment N ME- -BERER
The following items of property, plant AT - BRFE RFMEIE B &K
and equipment are stated at cost less IR K RET T & RO EE 18 (K
accumulated depreciation and impairment =¥ 1(0G0) 78R -

losses (note 1(1)(ii)):

- buildings, including buildings held - BF(EESEERZETF
for own use which are situated on (A ELH F) REA
leasehold land and right-of-use assets BAEBEFHHEENEHA
arising from leases of underlying EEE: &
building; and

- other items of plant and equipment. - HmEREEEE -

The cost of self-constructed items of BEME  KERZREBEB KK

property, plant and equipment includes the KEEMEKE  BEESTK

cost of materials, direct labour, the initial R RWER - YIS EEHRE &

estimate, where relevant, of the costs of B B LA R IR1EIE B FrEH R

dismantling and removing the items and BMEVRKA - LARGEE thley £ E

restoring the site on which they are located, REE R RERBAIEEX) °

and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (note 1(x)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of MERERE IR RERTE -
construction in progress.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

120

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEEFHEERmW
(Continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment (i) % - BERRWZ)
(Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

- Ownership interests Remaining term

in land and other of the lease
properties held
for own use
carried at cost
- Leasehold Shorter of 3 - 5 years
improvements or remaining term
of the lease
- Plant and machinery 5-10 years
- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
- Furniture, fixtures 3 -5 years

and equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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WER L EYME - BB MERER
B FrEL MW s s B IBIAZIER
B & PSSR F R B AL AR (B
ZEHEREE - WNREX
EE R EBRR AR -

WE - BEARBRENTER
ToMEHAIE RS - REARZE
i 3H H AR AR E (A A RIER(E B
(IB)EE -

- URHEELH FHNEBFRR
[E MBI R E A A AE
HA(BD 8 48 55 T H HA1&% 50
FIUAREERE)FE -

- BEAAR MEFIERIEMS
HRER A
2k
Hip#e
BARERER
- MEMEERE  3ESFHMEE
FSRESNREE
- BEL#R 5Z 104
- ABE AB5E
- & REREE 3E5F

BEMAERFHRERREE
(2B RS FETER




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1]

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (note 1())(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software
Trademark

5-10 years
10 years
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

1 FESHBR@

()

BLRE

ARE BB ARNEL & ELBEAR
RET (B R E R FHE
BRR) BosE R (B EE10)) 51

AEAFHERNER EEHH
REERME I ERFHAANLE
BoEBBEIN - THIRFERFE
HERMNEFEEB LA H#ER
HEARBHE T THE 85 R H AR 5T Al (£ A
FHIGOT -

BHBL
e

5210
104

—E- 558 FEARGERAT

121




122

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

1]

(k)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EE2EBE @

(Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(M

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

(Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued)

FESHBR (@)

124

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(M

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(i) and

(1))

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately
from the right-of-use assets in
accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt
securities carried at amortised cost
(see notes 1(g), 1(v)(i) and 1(l)(i). Any
difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal value of the deposits
is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEGHBEm®

(Continued)
(k) Leased assets Continued)

(M

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

(k) HERE®)
0 HEREREAE)

5 B A R B EEHCR
KEENREE A%
EERRBEFRKEEE
REMNNGFTSERE
IREFFEARERS
HeBmETEREE T
HASK AR IE3R AR 1T | AR 2
B AEFFEHEESR
B HELFBR NEH
AFEHERAE - RIEEE
AEEENREEFRRE
HE - NiHEREEEDN
FREECHRET - AR
FEREN B AR -

—E- 558 FEARGERAT

125



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

(Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued)

FESHBR (@)

126

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(M

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of
a lease or the consideration for a lease
that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”)
that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability
is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that
occurred as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and met the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases,
the Group has taken advantage of
the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the
change in consideration as negative
variable lease payments in profit or
loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

Annual Report 2021

(k) HESE®
N E&HEBEANE)
EHESBRAEZ LM
EAHNREWERTEMHE
EREBZLEEHR(THE
1B85T))  BERVEREBH
HEARE - BIMEHME
ERABETENTE - &
1B - HEBEREL
BEIMHEEN KRB EH
PR EAKEETMREREX
EEFTERBEFE -
M — 1 5 & B COVID-19
EEMBEZEEENEESR
% W HFEREYBR
£ RIS 16557 B 5 46B
ERFRE MG - FEULIER
T AEEFMAERER
ZET M EEeRE RS
RBEEENR - WHREEEE
TRERSHRIBREE
MHE - SREZEBNIE
mPERAEBFEEEN

e
TA °




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EE2EBE @

(Continued)
(k) Leased assets Continued)

(M

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of
financial position, the current portion of
long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this
is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(Continued)

(0

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(M

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on
the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, including
loans to an associate, which
are held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of
principal and interest);

- lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including units in bond funds,
equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEDEBUR (®|)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREEREZ)

(Continued)

() Credit losses from financial M £MIR -SHEER
instruments, contract assets and lease HERKRRZEES
receivables (Continued) |E)

Measurement of ECLs T EEEEHE

ECLs are a probability-weighted TEHAE E BB T AL = 0
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses BEFHNEESE - 8
are measured as the present value of BB AT B TEHAIR € Bk
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the (MRS HNEN TAREE
difference between the cash flows due WIREenERAEEEH
to the Group in accordance with the WERREREZHANE
contract and the cash flows that the R WIRERTE o

Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)
The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate
used in the measurement of the
lease receivable.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

1]

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(Continued)

(0

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

1]

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 180 days
past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due date;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

1]

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk
ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

136

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEDEBUR (#|)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREEREZ)
(Continued)
() Credit losses from financial ) «WMIR - SHNEER
instruments, contract assets and lease HEBKRRAZERS
receivables (Continued) - 1€-),

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

1]

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 1(v)(ii) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

F UAEEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

the disappearance of an active

market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

1]

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, lease receivable or
contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(0

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

investment property;

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries and
associate in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ATTHEBES) » UA ST
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBR (@)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREEREZ)
(Continued)
(1)) Impairment of other non-current assets () HMIFEEEERE
(Continued) (%)
— Calculation of recoverable - FTEAE SRR
amount
The recoverable amount of an BEMAIYE SRR
asset is the greater of its fair REAFEREE
value less costs of disposal and AERFERAEEBELZ
value in use. In assessing value MHEREE - R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(i)

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see note 1()(i)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim
period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, in the
process of production for such sale or in the
form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering
of services. Inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(n)

(0)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see
note 1(0)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
All receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method and including an allowance for credit
losses (see note 1(I)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

(@)

Interest-bearing horrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Trade and other payahles

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance,
with policy set out in note 1()(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(Continued)

(s)

Employee henefits

(M

(i)

Short-term employee henefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local
defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred.

Share-hased payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Employee henefits Continuead)

(i)

(1D

Share-based payments (Continued)
During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or
the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Termination henefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(M)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

]

Income tax (Continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(M)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities,
which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customers, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax (“VAT”) or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition polices are as
follows:

() Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. Revenue
represented the sales value of goods
sold less returns, discounts, rebates
and VAT.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note

1))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(1D

(iv)

E-commerce service income
E-commerce service income is
recognised when the consigned
goods from distributors sold through
the Group’s online shops are taken
possession and accepted by end
customers.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful lives
of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(v) Rental income from operating

leases

Rental income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they
are earned.

(vi) Personal protective equipment
revenue

Revenue is recognised when the
customer accepts and takes the
control of the products. Revenue
represented the sales value of
goods sold less returns, discounts,
rebates and VAT.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during
the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling of dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of operations outside mainland
China are translated into Renminbi at the
average exchange rates for the year which
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside mainland
China, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Annual Report 2021

1

FESHBR (@)
(w) BT (2

AN IR R e B AN FTF B IEE #
BERBERAR S BNERER
8- RZBHBRARVIHERE
BFEREERRENEE - &
REZFIAINETTHERIEE
BEERRBNERGAEAFE
2 RBITHERETRENAF
BEE27 -

REAMIRIN RN R ERFR
B2 5 B K05 0 P8 Rk
BER/ARE - BBARKRANIEA
B % ¥ & B 48 R A O i i [ R 4
BRARE - HUtELWERZ
BRNEM 2N AR E S
IR X et as 275

A & P B A RSN SRS E -
BZBINREHBEN RFERLE
REHEBRREBANAERE

Mo ERR -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEDEBUR (®|)

(Continued)

(x) Borrowing costs (x) fMEREF
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable WiE  2EEETERKRAA
to the acquisition, construction or production ARABRERENHEENEER
of an asset which necessarily takes a ERENERAE  #TERNE
substantial period of time to get ready for its RZBEKTN—E 5 - Afbfg
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of SRS BI A BE A BRfEI S 3 o

the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

() Research and development v) TR
Expenditure on research and development M ESEENFASEEELR
activities is recognised as an expense in the R AI L -

period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(z) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEDEBUR (®|)
(Continued)
(z) Related parties (continued) (z2) RRBEA (&)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any ) WFFE T3 E A

of the following conditions applies: ENE RS A& B A B

(Continued) (%)

(v)  One entity is a joint venture of a vy —HEBRFE=F
third entity and the other entity EBNE %fﬁ%
is an associate of the third entity. MEs—ERBRZS

“HEBMBED
=)

) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vl  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESHEEm)
(Continued)
(aa) Segment reporting (aa) R EHE

162

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of the Group’s
business lines.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

2  REVENUE 2 s

The principal activities of the Group are the sale of AEEZEEZHRRPREERE R
apparel and related accessories in the PRC. Revenue 1Bt - WRE S mMEE EER X
represents the sales value of goods sold less returns, RE - 138 - OHRIGEMN -
discounts, rebates and VAT.

RS R S I BB R 25 2 )
15 RRERNES A0S

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of IFRS 15 by sales
channels is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFT

Online shops 3 EIEA 668,901 612,481
Offline shops T IR

Wholesales L 279,865 224,560

Consignment (A i=! 423,896 451,381

1,372,662 1,288,422

BE-_FT-_—F+-A=+—HIEHF
B BEE-EPEASEKE10%
INE(ZZ=TF - &) c FAZER
FHREAMNSEPEERRFBEHNHT
27(a) °

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
single customer contributed to 10% or more
of the Group's revenue (2020: nil). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 27(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

3

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT
REVENUE AND COST

Revenue and cost from selling of medical gowns
and medical facial masks (“PPE”) amounted to
RMB33,865,000 (2020: RMB526,091,000) and
RMB31,840,000 (2020: RMB485,189,000),
respectively. The Group commenced the production
and sale of PPE in February 2020 in response to
the PRC government's invitation for support in
the midst of the Pandemic. Sales volume of PPE
fell due to increased market supply while average
selling price had come down significantly from peak
levels. Considering the decreased margins and PPE
business had never been the Group's focus nor
major line of business, the Group discontinued the
PPE business in December 2021.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has identified two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments:

° Apparel and accessories: this segment
manufactures, purchases and sells apparel
and accessories.

° Personal protective equipment: this segment

manufactures and sells personal protective
equipment.

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

4  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEBEHS (W)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (@ SWBRE- -BERAR
For the purposes of assessing segment 7%%15“*52\5%& AL 5 BPfEI &
performance and allocating resources $%@E’]@f?&ﬁﬁ£ﬁ&

between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of interest in an associate, deferred
tax assets, bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payable and lease liabilities attributable to
the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

To arrive at reportable segment profit, the
Group’s are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as share of loss of an associate, finance
costs and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

DAT%E‘EEE?%%EJ W BB
XS BEKMEE

DEEERTEMEBNEE - &
FHEERREDEE  WREEQ
Al s EERBEEE « R
Tm ReEFBRCEBYREM

NEBERIN - DHAEBERE
&R 2 Jh R RS E S B E(E A
B REMBMNFIEURAESR

F o

W KA D B ER 2D H
RE2EZ DR MELENHE R
ERERENBERENEENE
BN S TEEMNFX °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

4  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEBEHSE (W)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (@ SWRR- -BERARE)
(Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts NTHIRBE-TE-_—FR=
with customers by business lines, as T-EF+_A=+—HILEEFE
well as information regarding the Group’s NEP &R EREEEE S
reportable segments as provided to the 7 ARAREE&RSTHER
Group’s most senior executive management RERDE LD HRBETE
for the purposes of resource allocation and REBEAAKER 2RO HNE
assessment of segment performance for the o

year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is
set out below.

Personal
Apparel and accessories protective equipment Total
BEREH E £33 fact
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

ZEC-F | CECEF | ZBC-E | CTCEF | CBo-E | ZEC4EF
RMB'000 | RMB000 | RMB'000 | RMB000 | RMB'000 | RMBOO
AE®TR | ARETT | ARMTR | A\RETT | ARETR | ARETT

Revenue from contracts 7 BIFR B %8
with customers within 155 EERX
the scope of IFRS 15 ZEEHMbE 1,372,662 1,288,422 33,865 526,091 1,406,527 1,814,513

Reportable segment proft AT 27 H& 7 261,709 269,606 2,025 40902 269,734 310,608

As at 31 Decerber M-A=1t-H
Reportable segment assets T E2RAPEE 1,677,703 | 1360582 15,545 0862 | 1,693,248 | 1,370,444
af 758,901 640,198 - 21,153 758,901 661,351
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRE1THEBES) + AN RS R)
4  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEERS (@)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment h FE2K7HESE  R/E B
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities ERAROHIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT
Revenue from contracts EER IR EZER
with customers within E15EEE R
the scope of IFRS 15 EEEHME
Reportable segment revenue B 2 {5 S 1,406,527 1,814,513
Personal protective equipment 1 A B 5 # U s
revenue (33,865) (526,091)
Consolidated revenue fREWEs 1,372,662 1,288,422
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Profit A
Reportable segment profit A 25 7B 269,734 310,508
Share of loss of an associate ~ 31h —[E1EE & A RIHYETE (1,608) (154)
Finance costs Eﬂﬁﬁmk (16,179) (19,307)
Unallocated head office ROBLARPHER M
and corporate expenses N Eﬁ 53 (14,434) (17,664)
Consolidated profit before rE R AR
taxation 237,513 273,383
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

168

4  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEERSE)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment h FEHSHEHE BE B
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities ERARHHIEZ)
(Continued)

2021 2020
—EC—F —ECFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIERDHEE 1,693,248 1,370,444
Cash and cash equivalents Re MReFEY 251,671 529,037
Deposits with banks with JREIEA R 8 =@ A
original maturity date HERTTF X
over three months 285,000 293,357
Pledged bank deposits BEEFRITHER 114,143 92,397
Interest in an associate R—EE A R R 47,541 49,149
Deferred tax assets FIEFIAE B 45,596 40,562
Loans to an associate M —MEEE R RIREERK 31,502
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E AR FIR - 17,838
Consolidated total assets A EEERE 2,468,701 2,392,784
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities  A] 2{ D 2R E 758,901 661,351
Bank borrowings RITER 251,174 352,144
Current taxation BIHARE IR 33,306 49,494
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAE - 63
Consolidated total liabilities e BERsE 1,043,381 1,063,052

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 Hthlilg A
2021 2020
—B-—F —ToEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Interest income FMEWA 16,756 14,326
Government grants (i) RSB (i) 43,887 51,041
Rental income from investment ~ #& ¥ < WA (i)
property (ii) 6,489 8,490
Depreciation of investment SEMETE
property (10,364) (9,796)
Net gain on sale of HEHREKER
promotion and display materials ~ # k) F U 5 1,055 1,490
Net foreign exchange gain HNEE W 2 F B 3,432 9,514
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEWE - BENEE
property, plant and equipment AREMIERENEER
and other non-current assets Wz, (E18) F5 838 618)
Others Hit 6,552 9,568
68,645 84,015
Notes: Kt -

REBEE_ZT-_—FR-_FT-_TF+-H
=+— B IEFERNBUT BB BT PP
T HYEIGHIR S 52E) ©

0} Government grants in the years ended 31 December (i)
2021 and 2020 represented unconditional cash awards
granted by government authorities.

AEERBELHERLREYX - HE
—ROFL BV ESSF - WAIEB A
PR R B HEEEE - HENR—
REFHENRRTSHES - IEHES
ERBEHERK -

(i) The Group leases out investment properties under (i)
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted every year to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

NAHEH R EHEIR TR E N
A SR B LA T AR 2R HR IR

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

2021 2020

—EC-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Within 1 year —FR 4,933 3,585
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFR 10,710 4,259
15,643 7,844
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

6  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at

after charging/

FRIRAURF
BEADHFIENR, GEA)

(crediting):
2021 2020
- —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
(@) Finance costs & A
Interest on bank RITIEFAFE K
borrowings and RITHEH ZIRAIR
discounting of
bank acceptance bills 15,592 18,880
Interest on lease liabilites ~ FHE&EF S 587 427
16,179 19,307
2021 2020
—E-F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
(b) Staff costs BT
Salaries, wages and other ~ ¥& + TE RKHAEF
benefits 117,878 85,397
Contributions to defined REHFRIKRETE
contribution retirement MR (FIEE24)
plans (note 24) 7,999 989
Termination benefits BrR A& 1,981 2,285
Equity settled share-based #Ez#AE AR A
payment expenses AR REAXZ
(note 25) (FF5E25) 1,179 5,575
129,037 94,246

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 FRIREIER (&)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRBLATRFE 0B (T A)
(crediting):
2021 2020
—E-—fF T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
(c) Otheritems HihiEH
Amortisation s
— intangible assets - mpEE (MFE13)
(note 13) 6,333 6,524
Depreciation e
— owned property, - BEYE - BEKEHE
plant and equipment (FfzE12)
(note 12) 18,669 18,984
— investment property - IREME
(note 11) (Hg7E11) 10,364 9,796
— right-of-use asset - EREEE
(note 12) (H7E12) 5,833 3,368
Provision/(reversal) BUEE B RS, (B )
of impairment loss
— trade and - B 5 RHEM BRI
other receivables (FzE18(b))
(note 18(b)) 608 (218)
Inventory write-down FEMOR (FIEE17(0))
(note 17(b))
— apparel and accessories - AREE K AL A 47,389 85,981
— the PPE - BAF &= - 37,854
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREM BN & 3,042 3,467
Research and TN (i)
development cost (i) 26,318 19,191
Cost of inventories FERA (KIEE17(0)) i)
(note 17(b)) (ii) 823,054 1,251,127

Notes:

(i)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, research and
development costs include staff costs of employees in
the design, research and development department of
RMB13,985,000 (2020: RMB10,583,000) which are
included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 6(b).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, cost
of inventories includes inventory write-down of
RMB47,389,000 (2020: RMB85,981,000).

0) BE_ZT_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
B A B B FERET - BT5E KA ERM
RBHB TR A AR 13,985,000 7T (=
Z-ZTF : AR¥%10,583,0007T) B
SR AMFE6(0) IRER TRANA -

(i) RBE-_T-—F+=-_A=+—H1
FE FERABRETEMRRAREK
47,389,000 c( —_E T F: AR¥
85,981,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

7  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(@ Income tax in the consolidated (@
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents:

FERRREMEZERRERSP
o] iRt

FeERaRREtRERE R
REIFRRIREE

2021 2020
—E=-—5 —E-THE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Current tax BIEA® 18
PRC Corporate AR B 1 FT1S A (v)
Income Tax (iv) 68,375 83,981
Over-provision BEFERRE
in respect of prior years FBEE (1,564) (256)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (ii)ii) & & FI45 A% (ii)(ii) 1,054 2,466
PRC withholding tax Fr B TR A
— dividend (v) - IRE (V) 4,751 3,000
— others - E 1,353 1,071
73,969 90,262
Deferred tax B IE
Reversal of temporary RO 4 Z5R
differences (note 16(o)) (FFEE16(0)) (5,097) (11,920)
68,872 78,342
Notes: Bt
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the (i) BREFRENERABRELES
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands (TEBEAHS ) BRI RE
(“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income ] ANEEHAMNRERS R
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. RER LS HERPTSH
(ii) For the years ended 31 December 2021 and (ii) HE-_T-_—GFR-_T_TF
2020, the provision for Hong Kong Profits +ZA=+—HLFE BB
Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated SRBERFENMEE ERTRF
assessable profits for the year. 716.5%TH o
(ii) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021 (i) T —FEBNETRET R

BERFERN®R T =52 =—
AREERLORSE - BIERL
¥EMNFIANI00%  H=RE
10,0008 TL(Z T =FF : =%
—NEZ-_TFIHREEREES
B 520,000 7T - WK EE =
T oTEREREEEERSM
®) e

is taken into account a reduction granted by the
Hong Kong SAR Government of 100% of the
tax payable for the year of assessment 2020-21
subject to a maximum reduction of $10,000 for
each business (2020: a maximum reduction of
$20,000 was granted for the year of assessment
2019-20 and was taken into account in
calculating the provision for 2020).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(v)

The statutory income tax rate applicable to the
Company’s subsidiaries in the mainland China
is 256% for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: 25%).

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and
its implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for profits earned since 1
January 2008. In addition, under the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident
will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5%
for dividend income derived from the PRC if the
Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner”
and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of
the PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have
been provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008.
The Group adopted 5% withholding tax rate for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Dividend withholding tax represents tax
charged by the PRC tax authority and dividend
distributed by the Group and subsidiary in the
mainland China during the year.

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

FeEEREMZEKERTP
BIFR S (m)

(A GeRZREMREKEE
PEIFRRRE - (@)

Hiet : (&)

(iv) HE-_Z-_—F+-H=+—H
IEFEBERANARRMBARZ
AR E KR ATE TSR B25% (=
T_TF 1 25%) ©

) BECEMESHERALE B
Al FEHFEGHXERMEE-ZT
J\EF— B — BB E A A FI e Uk
B 3 RO AR B B IR 10% BB R
ANTEANT - BRIEBIUIT E 3K
LHEHIR o Lo - IRBRHELE
B EEEHB LR EEE
B WEAREERE[E&ME
BAIAFHEBHBEREE25%3K
LA EWORRHE - BIE BN BAT
BERSESRNPBREELENRE
WA T2 5% B B = N B 1B -
ERBZSEMNBARIKAZZE
NFE—A—BREL/GEFRA
T8 R AR T oIk TE AR S BE L
FHRELEBIRAE - ARBEER
HE-_ZT-_—K-_ZT_ZTF
+ZA=+—HIEFEHM%
BITEHORR ©

BB IEMBIE BB B KA A
SE R BEAKE B R RFF
M IKE B SHNEREITRIA

—E- 558 FEARGERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 1 FEEZRAMZEKREFS
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND BIFR SR (@)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
(b) Reconciliation hetween tax expense (bh) MEAZEZBARFHE
and accounting profit at applicable tax FERHRFIEEIR -
rates:
2021 2020
B —-F =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before taxation BR 75 A4 A 237,513 273,383
Notional tax on profit REAREHBERR
before taxation, SEMEGTER
calculated at the BRI A& A1 AY
standard tax rates HEHIEA
applicable to the
respective tax
jurisdictions 63,699 71,338
Effect of non-deductible AT AR &
expenses 5,580 8,768
Effect of non-taxable BAGRIRARE
income (942) (1,544)
Effect of tax losses not AERNIBEEBNZE
recognised 1,762 604
Over-provision BEFEN
in prior years BiEiEER (1,564) (256)
PRC dividend A B R S TR A
withholding tax - (439)
Other withholding tax H B 1,353 1,071
Others HAh (1,016) (1,200)
Actual tax expense ERMIERX 68,872 78,342
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EFFHFM
The details of directors’ emoluments are disclosed EEHMFIEHRENAT ¢
as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2021
fee in kind contributions Total
e
)=4:914 RIREE —E--f%
ExHe BNEF % @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR

Executive directors ~ H{TEE

Mr. Ziming Yang BEBLE 512 512 29 1,053
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 293 - 22 315
Mr. Ronggin Ke RIS E 150 135 23 308
Independent BUFHITES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui HRABTE 293 - - 293
Mr. Honghui Chen RREL A 293 - - 293
Mr. Ming Shu Leung REBTLE 293 - - 293
Total @t 1,834 647 74 2,555

—E-—-FF58% FERGAERLE 1715
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8 EFFHFMm
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Equity-settled
Directors’”  and benefits scheme share-based 2020
fee inkind  contributions Sub-total payments Totdl
(note)
WRIPA
ie ERE
2R R L 2
g2 EUEN 5 N5t (W) h
RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTT  ARETR
Executive directors UnEs
M. Ziming Yang BEREE 1,161 1,161 31 2,353 = 2353
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROREE 327 - 17 344 31 375
Mr. Rongain Ke Lyt 174 145 7 36 9% 404
Independent BIFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsu RAEEE 312 - - 312 - 312
Mr. Honghui Chen REBLE 312 - - 312 - 312
Mr. Ming Shu Leung PHEEE 312 - - 312 - 312
Total a5 2,598 1,306 55 3,959 129 4,088
Notes: Kzt -

These represent the estimated value of share options granted

to the directors under the Company’s share option schemes.

The value of these share options is measured according to

the Group’s accounting policies for share based payment

transactions as set out in note 1(s(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share Option Schemes” in Report of The Directors

and note 25.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

mEmMAL
RERBHEMALRRE—REE(C

9 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2020: two) is the director whose emoluments TTF MAE) BENFMHR X
are disclosed in note 8 above. The aggregate of the MHEE8IREE - sA N ERIA THF B 42%E
emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals LU

are as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETT

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & & H fib 3 Bl 6,103 3,012

Contributions to retirement RIREFIFT B3R

benefit scheme 68 34
Equity settled share-based VARG AR 7 BB O Ak i

payments HEENR 1,179 250

7,350 3,296

The emoluments of the four (2020: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

ME(—E-BF : ZR)KESFMAL
HEBN T TS E

2021 2020

—EB-—-F —ETF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 7T = 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T E 4,500,000 /87T 1 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 wSERF

(a) Basic earnings per share (@)

The calculation of basic earnings per
share is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB164,192,000 (2020:
RMB194,209,000) and the weighted average
number of 668,593,000 ordinary shares
(2020: 668,593,000) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares

Issued ordinary shares at 7 — A
1 January and mE
31 December

SREXRF
BERERBFTIARNRA R LB
B EABRGEENARK
164,192,0007t( = T = T F -
A B %194,209,0007T ) & 4
NE B BT E B MNEFHIE
668,593,000 ( — T — & & :
668,593,000 % ) & E E 5+ & 1
T~

B R INFE 1T B
2021 2020
—E_—F —E—=F
’000 ‘000
TR TH%
668,593 668,593
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 10 SBEREF @)
(b) Diluted earnings per share h) BSEREEEN
The calculation of diluted earnings per share REFERNTIARNRQR LB
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary KREREAEBMLRMARK
equity shareholders of the Company of 164,192,000 L (ZZT=FF : A
RMB164,192,000 (2020: RMB194,209,000) R # 194,209,000 7T ) K& AR N
and the weighted average number of ordinary 19 £0669,549,000 i (=& =
shares of 669,549,000 shares (2020: T & : 668,593,000% ) A& F A
668,593,000), calculated as follows: (N
Weighted average number of ordinary EERMNET9E (EE)
shares (diluted)
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
’000 000
TR TR
Weighted average number A+ —-A=+—H
of ordinary shares B 38 R N X5 E
at 31 December 668,593 668,593
Effect of deemed issue of 1R ERIBEA R Bl FEARHERTEI
shares under the NERBEITRDHTZE
Company’s share option ~ (Ff5E25)
scheme for nil
consideration (note 25) 956 -
Weighted average number A+—=A=+—H
of ordinary shares Y AR N T I 2K
(diluted) at 31 December (&%) 669,549 668,593

—E-—558% FfEReERaE 179
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 11 BEYE
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2020 M-_Z_ZTF—H—H 140,699
Reclassification from property, plant BYE - BER
and equipment REEFNE 512
Disposals HE (1,303)
Reclassification to property, ENOEEYE BE
plant and equipment & (16,911)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZE_ZTF+-H=1+—H
E—_ZT_—F—H—H 122,997

Reclassification from property, plant and equipment

B - BERBEENDE 11,887

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2020
Charge for the year
Reclassification from property, plant
and equipment
Written back on disposals
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

Charge for the year
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment

R —F+=-_A=+—H 134,884

RAIHIE
R-E-_TF—H—H 11,946
F AR 9,796
BYE - BE M&E

E-Eibon | 31
& E (239)
ENPBREVE  BEK

B (1,549)
R-ZE-_FF+_-_A=+—H
;k—ZE-—F—H—H 19,985
F AR 10,364

BYE BEMREETOE 1,417

At 31 December 2021

A—E_—F+-A=+—H 31,766

Net book value:
At 31 December 2021

BRMEEE :
R-ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H 103,118

At 31 December 2020

R-ZE-FF+-H=+—H 103,012

Investment properties of the Group are situated in
the PRC.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The lease typically runs for an
initial period of 1 to 5 year, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. The leases do not include contingent
rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of investment
properties are classified as investment properties.

The carrying amount of the investment properties
was not materially different from its fair value as at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

"

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

BREYE @)

BEHSETHHNEE
AEBRECEHERHEREYMHE - A
ENVBGTERRATR1EF  H
BARBETRY  BRATEERHEE
iER c MEV T BENAEE -

REEHER T HBNAEYNERITH
BRENEEREDBRRENE

R-_E-_—F+_A=+—HBk=_Z—
TFE+-A=+—8 KEWENER
BEEENFEMELTESAZER -

—E- 558 FEARGERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥  BEREH
(@ Reconciliation of carrying amount (@ IREEHIE
Ownership
interests
in land and other
properties held
for own use Furniture,
carriedat  Leasehold  Plantand Motor fixturesand Construction
cost improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
RHANEN
REERZLY
REfE2 ffi - 22

BrRR: RENREE RERAR AE RBE ERIE a3t
RMBOOO ~ RWBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOD ~ RWBOD  RWBOOD  RMBUOOO

ARETL  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Cost: mﬁi
At 1 January 2020 2225-f-H 56,579 21,988 106,322 16,398 31,59 14,102 260,984
Addttions /J\\E 3,121 2,193 6,728 1,563 6,357 17,407 37,369
Redlassfication flominvestment  EREANFEH A

properties . - - 16,911 - - - 16911
Disposals HE - S um L -
Transfer ﬁ% - = 7,187 = - (7,187) -
Reclassffication to investment NORERENE

properties ) (512) - - - _ _ (512
Exchange adjustment ER A% = = = 216) (125) - (341)
At 31 December 2020

and 1 January 2021 58,183 30,181 131,874 17,733 30413 24,322 292,711
Adaltions ) 45,403 3,102 1,973 2323 3,586 44565 100,962
Reclassifcation to investment i#ﬁ NEERENE

properties . = = (16,404) - - - (16,404)
Reclassffcation fom invesiment ~ BRENZEH

properties 4517 - - = = = 4517
Disposals i - - (3,206) (1,735) 2,709 - (7,650)
Trangfer 28 - - 3 - 1851 (8524) -
Exchange acjustment ExAE = = - (504) (7 - (581)
At 31 December 2021 R=E=—§+ZA=1-A 108,108 38283 148130 17817 32,564 B8 3854
Accumulated depreciation: i‘HﬁE
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-TE-F-A 3979 25,793 7,198 11,038 26,960 - 74,968
Charge for he yeer EfpE 3% 143 13801 170 200 K,
Reclassffcation from investment ~ ERENXEHE

properties - - 1549 - - - 1,649
Whiten back on disposals %M = = {#010) ) 702) - [11,0%)
Redassficatonfoivestment ~ BRAEZERENZ

properties (31 = = = = = (31)
Exchange adustment ExRE = = = (93) (121) - (214)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FE+_A=1-Ak

and 1 January 2021 —g—*E*H*H 7316 27,246 18,538 12,671 21,817 - 87,588
Cherge for the year Emg 5833 1829 11,89 2036 2,906 - 2,502
Reclassficationto investment ~ EFAEERENR

properties o - - (1,697 = = = (1,697)
Reclassffcation from investment B REAREH 28

properties ‘ %0 - i - _ i} 280
Wten back on disposals HERE - - 09 (16 (1) - (3,246)
Exchange adjustment B8 = = = (o44) 7 = [321)
At 31 December 2021 WS-+ A=1-H 13429 29,075 28,500 12,838 23,264 - o706
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 A S g el 94,679 4208 119,630 4979 9,300 33,643 266,439
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-ZE+-A=1-A 50872 2,935 113,336 5,062 8,5% 24,302 205,123
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

12 % - BERRRE®

(Continued)
(@ Reconciliation of carrying amount (@ MREEHIEZ)
(Continued)
The aggregated net book value of property, RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
plant and equipment and investment H REEFEAXARK
properties pledged to secure the Group's 224,384,000 T % W FE &
banking facilities for issuing bills payable and RERIEEYEEER  ERA
short-term bank borrowing was amounted to SEARZETENEERERS
RMB224,384,000 as at 31 December 2021 RITERZRITRENER(Z
(2020: RMB149,571,000). T -ZTF: AR¥149,571,000
JL) °
(b) Right-of-use assets b FHESRE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of- EEBEERANE D 2 EAESR
use assets by class of underlying asset is as EREFETWET -
follows:
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F T F
+=A=+-B| +t=A=t+-A
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR¥TR ARBTTT
Ownership interests in RKIEERAZ
leasehold land held HELH
for own use, carried at HEAEERER
the depreciated cost (BIMEXRAAE) () 53,800 41,712
Other properties leased HEEBRZ
for own use, carried at Hin % (fRiTE
the depreciated cost ARAER) (i) 40,879 9,160
94,679 50,872
Notes: () Ownership interests in leasehold land held Mt () HEERZHEELTH AR
for own use WEREZS
Ownership interests in leasehold land held BEERZHEELHMZER

for own use represented the Group’s land
use rights on leasehold land located in the
PRC. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these land use rights.

(i) Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to
use other properties as its warehouses,
office and retail stores through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 5 years. Lease payments
are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals.

Rt i AR B A T B A
MHE + ) L3 AR - K
BRELEREMNEEY
—IRMERIR

(iy MEFEBOEMYIE
FEBEEERHERHRES
EREMYMEERRE - H#
RERTEEHOEN © %
HE-—RYPRH2EEF -
HENERTFFEMUR
BRmiSHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 % BEREHE (|
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continueq) b EHESE =)
The analysis of expense items in relation HERNERERNEEEENFX
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as HESWMWT -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Depreciation charge of REEEERREINH
right-of-use assets by EREEEREXL :
class of underlying asset:

Ownership interests BIEERZHET

in leasehold land B EER

held for own use 1,432 1,065
Other properties leased for FAE1EE AR H ALY

own use 4,401 2,303

Interest on lease liabilities A E&EFS (HiE6@)

(note 6(a)) 587 427
Expense relating to RN HAHE
short-term leases BRERNFAX 3,612 4,643

COVID-19-related rent 2 EELCOVID-19
concessions received AR REE - 110
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020, additions to right-
of-use assets were primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreements and newly acquired
leasehold land.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities and the
future cash outflows arising from leases that
are not yet commenced are set out in notes
20(d), 23, 27(b) and 28 respectively.

As disclosed in the note 1(c), the Group
has early adopted the Amendment to
IFRS16,Leases,Covid-19-related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, and
applies the practical expedient to all eligible
rent concessions received by the Group.

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

12 % - BERRRE®

(b)

ERERE @)
BE-_ZT-_—Ft+=-A=t—H
—FFFt-_A=t+—HL
FE - ERABEENAEEEZH
REFHEHAEN ZEEARH
BENSEAEBHE T ER -

FHAMHERe LA HEE
BEHNRH RS R ARFGBHEE
EEZARFBEEREZF5 &
2 Bl 2 B Bt 5220(d) ~ 23 ~ 27(b)
228 °

BT FEE - AEEE
RPN B3RS 2RI 16
ERIBETAN - HE » —FE - —4F,\
H =+ H{#&#COVID-191H 65
ZH%E  WEABRIITRE AR
ARAEERSHNFAESERA
SRR

—E- 558 FEARGERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 ®|EBEE
Computer
software Others Total
E e Hoth st

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Cost: KA -

At 1 January 2020 KRB -_ZTF—F—H 65,022 9,050 74,072
Additions NE 11,550 — 11,550
Disposals HE (205) — (205)

At 31 December 2020 AT T 4F
and 1 January 2021 +-A=+—H8BxK

—FT-—F—H—H 76,367 9,050 85,417
Additions NE 8,105 3,253 11,358
At 31 December 2021 HRZ-ZT=—4F
+=-A=+—H 84,472 12,303 96,775
Accumulated Rty .
amortisation:
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-TF—HF—H 38,536 2,237 40,773
Charge for the year FRMkR 6,524 - 6,524
Written back on &L
disposals (175) - (179)
At 31 December 2020 RZ-ZT=ZTF
and 1 January 2021 TZHA=+—AK
—FT-—H#—H—H 44,885 2,237 47,122
Charge for the year FAHBR 6,089 244 6,333
At 31 December 2021 R-ZT-——%F
+—A=+—H 50,974 2,481 53,455
Net book value: BREDFE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE=——4F
+=—A=+—H 33,498 9,822 43,320
At 31 December 2020 R-_ZT_FTF
+=—A=+—H 31,482 6,813 38,295
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, other RZEBEZ_—FRZIZT_ZF+_A
intangible assets include golf and yacht club =+—H HMEREERESBX
memberships totally amounted to RMB6,813,000. REEfemaiEe  AK%6,813,000
The Group considers that the useful lives of above T ASERE LN SETEFRF
memberships are infinite. R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group considers that there is no impairment
indication of the intangible assets with infinite useful
lives, as the fair value of such assets exceeded
their carrying amount as at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020.

The amortisation charge of intangible assets for
the year is included in “administrative and other
operating expenses” and “selling and distribution
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Particulars of the associate which is an unlisted
domestic enterprise incorporated and with business
in the PRC whose quoted market price is not
available:

Particulars of

issued and paid

Name of associate up capital
ERTRE

BENTER HrErEE
Guangzhou Huazhi Investments Co., Ltd. RMB100,000,000
(*Huazhi Investments’)* AR 100,000,0007C

ENEERERRAA ([FERE )

13

14

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

\|EEE @\
R-EZ—F+_A=+t—HBRZZT=
TFE+-_A=+—H " ARAIFEAFH
AERNEFEEEN A ATEBBEER
B WASERREHEEEL TR
BEIR -

FARTEERHER D ARARE
REMEE W RIE N [TTEREEM
LB R [HERDHFAX]

R—EBEARNER

ZH SRR (R — MR B MA I
ETEBNIELTHALE - AIBH
MBI TAS) MEEMT

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERELA
Group's
effective Held by the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ASEN HE
BERER AOAFRE  QAMRE TERD
33% - 33% Properties construction

nERE

*

The English translation of the Company name is for
reference only. The official name of the Company is in
Chinese.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.
Summarised financial information of the associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,
and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
below:

Y RABBHENBREHRER  ERXANES
NAEREARI

ZHE R R EREREERE MR
RAALR - ZBE R R E R E
PEREA SR ERFAE - WHER
B BRRNREEETHREREN
T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

14 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 14 R—EBRELTHER @)

188

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

2021 2020
—B--F —ECTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Gross amounts of the associate ~ Bft& /A a4 S5
Current assets MEEE 387,055 497,889
Non-current assets EMBNEE 166,410 8
Current liabilities MEEE (207,529) (163,088)
Non-current liabilities FERBALE (235,000) (219,000)
Equity s 110,936 115,809
Revenue We - -
Loss for the year FREIE (4,873) (467)
Total comprehensive income AN BEE (4,873) (467)
Reconciled to the Group’s HAREEREEARA

interests in the associate RS HBR
Gross amounts of net assets & N R EEFERRE

of the associate 110,936 115,809
Group’s effective interest AREBENERER 33% 33%
Group’s share of net assets REEEGHERREEFE

of the associate 36,609 38,217
Goodwill EE 10,932 10,932
Carrying amount in the RErE RN REE

consolidated financial

statements 47,541 49,149

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 HHEATMRE

The following list contains only the particulars of TREHIEAKEFEE - EEXEE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, BEERTENMBARFIE - BREHIE
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares BASN - FTiEIR (D B EiRAR o

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of owngrshir interest
BRELILA

Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by the
Name of company and business  paid up capltal interest Company subsidiaries Principal activities
SRR BETR  AZEY A1 BN
A EXny HREAHE R kB fike  *EEE
Cabbeen Clothing China PRC HK$50,000,000 100% - 100% Wholesale of apparel
Co,, Ltd.*() el 50,000,000/ 7 HER
(“Cabbeen Chin’)
%é Ré () BRAR ()
([+ZwE )
Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC HK$20,000,000 100% - 100% Wholesale of apparel
%) i 20,000,000 HERx
FJHm%é HARAA (1)
Quanzhou Mije Electronic PRC Nil 100% - 100% Wholesale of apparel
Commerce Co, Ltd* E z HERE
shmERE FHRARAT
Guangzhou Zixi Enterpnse PRC HK$8,000,000 100% - 100% Trademark holding and
Managemem Co., Ltd. * |) i 8,000,000 47T retail 0 apEarel
BmRRL £ ERER AR () BRRRRREZE
Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC RMB6,000,000 100% - 100% Online sales of apparel
Trading Co. Lid* i ARH6,000,0007C BhREEE
BN FERN SR
Guangzhou Huazhi PRC RMB65,000,000 96.27% = 96.27% Real estate development
Devlopment Co, Lig:_ el ARH65,000,0007C BHERE
BN EEELURARAT
Shishi Gity Junyuan Development — PRC RMB6,616,885 100% -

100% Properties holding
Co, Lid i ARE 66168857 mgﬁﬁ
ARTRRERARAR

Tianjin Lechuang Electronic PRC RMB2,000,000 25% - 25% Online sales of apparel
Commerce Co, Ltd én) thE AR 2,000,000 EhlkEEE
FReelE ERaRAA)

Notes: (i) The subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned HiEE - () ZEMBRR ATREINIEBEER
enterprises in the PRC. E

(i) In accordance with the article of association, (i) RIEESSIZME > REPEHE

Cabbeen China has control over Tianjin BRRLAETABERIFN

Lechuang Electronic Commerce Co.,Ltd, who PRI - Bt - S ERKEBL

as a result, is consolidated in the financial Alira NREA QR ERE

statements of the Company as a subsidiary.

* The English translation of the companies’' names is for - FZERNRNEGELEHRZE - ZFRA
reference only. The official names of these companies are RN ETERE R B e
in Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

190

16 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 16 FESMEBKARABMMRER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated (@) HFEBMBRARAIEIRIR
statement of financial position miE -
represents:
2021 2020
—B--F —ZTTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
PRC Corporate Income Tax & ﬁ%ﬁ{r%%}fﬁ 26,610 42,561
Hong Kong Profits Tax BABMFH 6,696 6,933
33,306 49,494
(h) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (h) ERZNHNEZEREZTERA
recognised: & :
(i) Movement of each component of () EBERESERARD
deferred tax assets and liabilities SHRMSEH
The components of deferred tax &R & B SR & R Y
assets/(liabilities) recognised in the EEBBEEE,/(AF)
consolidated statement of financial MK E D R FERE BN
position and the movements during I
the year are as follows:
PRC dividend
withholding tax
relating to the
undistributed
profits of the
Inventory  Allowances for Accrued Unrealised ~ Company's PRC
Deferred tax arising from: provision  doubtful debts expenses profits ~ subsidiaries Total
HEALT
hEKELA
RARER
WTRERELEEHE: BERE REAE itz FERER  SEREENH it
RMBO0D RMB000 RMBO00 RMB00 RMBO0D RIB 00D
NEETT MEET  ARETR NEETTL NEETTL NEETT
At 1 January 200 AZ2255-A-H 17175 245 12331 2067 (3439 28579
Crdted(debted)topoft A/ (1) Bt
orloss (ot 73) (K 7) 14113 (54 t945) (633 3439 11,920
At 31 December 2020 A-E-BE-R=1-A
and 1 January 2021 k=%=-%-A-H 31,288 191 738 1634 40499
Debtec)oedentopoft (1) /5Bt
0rloss note 7(e) () 18.6%) 15 13179 164 5007
At 31 Decermber 2021 R-E-F-f=1-A 250 33 20565 2008 15,5

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

16 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 16 HFREMBKARADRFR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%8)
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities h) EEFZNEERATERSA
recognised: Continued) ]:#E
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) HJMEMBRARBIE
statement of financial position
2021 2020
—EF--F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARET T

Net deferred tax asset RERE AR TR

recognised in the R IR

consolidated statement HIBEEFER

of financial position 45,596 40,562
Net deferred tax liability RERE AR R

recognised in the RZIEILE

consolidated statement MIBEEFEE

of financial position - (63)

45,596 40,499
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

16

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
certain PRC subsidiaries of RMB11,329,000
(2020: RMB6,205,000), which will expire in
five years under the current tax legislation.
The tax effect on such tax losses has not
been recognised as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC
dividend withholding tax relating to certain
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at the end of each
reporting period, it was determined that the
undistributed profits of RMB994,375,000
(2020: RMB1,088,524,000) of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries would not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.
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(c)

(d)

KEZHEERBSE

AEBWEERERSE TR
BARIMRFBHEEBARK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
M H 8 R M (B)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

17 INVENTORIES 17 &&
(@) Inventories in the consolidated (@ HFEMBERIZRNERS
statement of financial position ¥ -
comprise:
2021 2020
—BC--F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Raw materials R A 14,405 19,586
Work in progress EES 9,341 4,209
Finished goods Ekmm 507,209 364,498
530,955 388,293
(b) The analysis of the amount of (h) FREREMAXZAHABENE
inventories recognised as an expense S&#ESWMT :
and included in profit or loss is as
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—-F —ECTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Carrying amount of EHEFEMNREE
inventory sold
— apparel and accessories — ARZEE N B &fi 743,825 679,957
— the PPE S EUNGE53 31,840 447,335
Inventories write-down FEMR
— apparel and accessories - AR¥E &g & 47,389 85,981
- the PPE - BAPEEAE - 37,854
823,054 1,251,127
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 ESERHMEKRIA

2021 2020

—E--F —TTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT ARKETT

Trade receivables B 5 RUGKIA 491,943 434,040

Bills receivable FEU =R 113,000 114,000

Less: Loss allowance B IR (1,370) (762)

Trade and bills receivables B SRR LR EE 603,573 547,278

Prepayments to suppliers Mt fE R a5 SR 24,574 1,766
Other deposits, prepayments Hiize - BARIER

and receivables (Note) FEWRIE (MI7E) 82,927 64,302

711,074 613,346

All of the current trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year, except for the Group’s deposits of
RMB3,729,000 (2020: RMB2,381,000), which are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ATTHEBES) » UA ST
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continved) 18 5K H hfEUFRIA (&)
The Group accepts bank acceptance bills from REBEGEEESHEREEMTFRHEER
major banks in the PRC for settlement of trade THIRITEHLEE - BERERAZEER
debts. The management considered that the risk TJ‘EE’JH R EHEERRERE - Bt
of these bills relates substantially to credit risk. EREEBERMRNAEEEER - £
Accordingly, when these bills were transferred BRIEERREMEE °
by either discounting or endorsement, they were
derecognised as a financial asset.
At 31 December 2021, the Group transferred bank R-ZZE-Z_—F+=-_A=+—H ' K&
acceptance bills totalling RMB160,258,000 (2020: lE%E% R B A R 160,258,000 7T
RMB181,046,000), and derecognised as financial —T-FTF : AR®181,046,0007T)
assets. These bank acceptance bills will mature six HIRITAREER  WRIFERAE/E
months from the date of issue. E o ZERITALEBR B EITHEE
FT/NE A EE o
(@ Ageing analysis (@ FERESH
Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables RZEZ—FRZZTFTF+=
based on invoice date and net of loss A=1T—HB®E S EYRIEKRE
allowance as at 31 December 2021 and WEBKREERERIBEESR
2020 are as follows: AEARBREC DATAA T -
2021 2020
—B--F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Within 3 months =EANUA 401,353 408,572
More than 3 months but =& A LA_E7X{E A AR
within 6 months 107,560 103,538
More than 6 months but ~ 7~1E A LA E—SF AR
within 1 year 93,694 35,168
More than 1 year —F A F 966 -
603,573 547,278
Trade and bills receivables are due within EE YRV ES NGRS

180-360 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from trade and bills receivables
are set out in note 27(a).

HEAFH 1802360 H A 2 Hf -

FERAASEEERRARRE
FRERWFIANERERELD
EERERmE— S FHITHAH T

27(a) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuves) 18 525K HMEWFRIF ()

(b) Impairment of trade and bills (b)) HIEWREARERFRED
receivables |
The movement in the loss allowance for FACESREWFKIBEEREE
trade receivables during the year, including F(BREMENGFTERERAERE
components measured individually and using EBEREEEREKE D)
the expected credit loss provision matrix, is T
as follows:
2021 2020
—B--F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AR¥ETT

At 1 January n—HA—H 762 980
Impairment loss R (BE) REEE
recognised/(reversed) 608 (218)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 1,370 762
19 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 19 BEE#HSETER

Bank deposits have been pledged mainly as security RITHERE EEBFERENRE (M
for bills payable (note 22) and banking facilities. The 5122) RIRTTIRIEMER - EEBRTT
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the BFHERIEERBRENZBEHBRITRE
settlement of relevant bills payable and expiration of FIHA1Z AR bR ©

banking facilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 HERFEFRY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ BERIELFEMEIE :
2021 2020
—B--F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
Cash at bank and on hand HRITFER KL FEES 247,226 524,589
Other deposit HAbFFR 4,445 4,448
Cash and cash equivalents F4RE ISR KR A
in the consolidated ReMIREFEY
financial position 251,671 529,037
At 31 December 2021, cash and cash R—E2E-_—F+-_A=+—8"

HFERFBRRRITHERES KR
+EEBY A AR 237,874,000 7T
(ZZ=ZF : AR¥506,723,000
7)) e BFFERMERNESAE
ST AR B BT AR 45 B9 FINE B 1 /9 4R
BRRRIRER -

equivalents placed with banks in mainland
China amounted to RMB237,874,000 (2020:
RMB506,723,000). Remittance of funds out
of mainland China is subject to the relevant
rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20 BHaRBeERYm
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation b RN EAFRESETDMRE
to cash generated from operations: REHIE -
2021 2020
—E--F ZEITF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥ TR ARETFT
Profit before taxation BRI H 237,513 273,383
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 6(c) 34,866 32,148
Amortisation of B EEBH
intangible assets 6(c) 6,333 6,524
Share of loss of DME—TEEEE QA
an associate &Bia 1,608 154
Finance costs BMEKR 6(a) 16,179 19,307
COVID-19-related EEELCOVID-19
rent concessions AR LSRR
received - (110)
Net foreign exchange HNE Wtz
gain JFEE (5,859) (8,351)
Interest income FEWA 5 (16,756) (14,326)
Net (gain)/loss HEME - B&E
on disposal of REA R HEH A
property, plant FERBEEN
and equipment () /518
and other FEE
non-current assets B (838) 618
Equity settled share-based ~ #Em&EE UG A
payment expenses EMHNTAXT 60 1,179 5,575
Changes in working capital: ~ ZE &4 &8
Increase in inventories FEEM (142,662) (4,577)
(ncrease)/decrease intrade &5 R E &I
and other receivables B (), mAd (110,702 83,122
Increase in trade B 5 REMER
and other payables FIEIE AN 64,219 60,138
Cash generated from rEREMEERS
operations 85,080 453,605
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continues) 20 RERBRLFR/Y @)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MEEFHARELARZHIE
financing activities
The table below details changes in the TRETBEEZBEELREE
Group’s liabilities from financing activities, BECEHFE  BIERESKIE
including both cash and non-cash changes. Rege RETHELECZER
Liabilities arising from financing activities are ERERELIRKRERES
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future RAKBEERERERS
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s REESBELECHEERENE

E=
=]

o

consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

(c)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

20 BHaRBeERYm

(c) MEFDMEERRZHIE

financing activities (Continued) (%)
Other
payable for
acquisition of
Bank loans non-controlling
and other Lease Interests  Dividends interests in
borrowings liabilities payable payable  asubsidiary Total
WiER-H
HEARN
RIEHR FERER
e HERE  EMAE  EGRE EMEARE Ch
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR  ARBTR
At 1 January 2020 RZZ=TE-H-H 364,737 8317 - - - 363,054
Changes from financing RERSREVET
cash flows:
Prooseds from new bank loans MRITER 2 FE5E 128,666 - - - - 108666
Repayment of bank loans BRBRITER (114,000) - - = - (114000
Capital element of lease B EAEA
rentals paid - (1,591) - - - (1,591)
Interest element of lease BfifEgFESS
rentals paid = (427) = = - (427)
Interests paid BAFIE - - (17,181) - - (17,181)
Dividends paid ERRE - - - (63229) - (83,229)
Payment of acquistion of Sl =Yg
non-controling interests SRR L3
in a subsidlary - - - - (43,000) (43,000)
Total changes from financing BEREME BDEE
cash flows 14,666 2,018 (17,181) (63,229) (43,000) (110,762)
Exchange adjustments EREE (18,570) - - - - (18,570)
Other changes: Hthe
Amortization on other Ef AT A
borrowings cost 1,311 - - - - 1,311
Interest expense FER - 407 17619 - - 18,046
Increase In lease liabilties from HARAAHE
entering into new leases ZHEEEEN
dluring the period = 2,950 - = - 2,950
COVID-19-related rent EJEHICOVID-19
concessions received RERLES
(Note 12(o) (FitzE12(0)) - (110 - - - (110
Addtion on dividends payable FERaEm - - - 63,229 - 63,229
Adation on investment R—EHBARM
in a subsidiary RALEM = = = - 43,000 43,000
_ Totalotherchanges MemmeE [ 180 8T 17619 8829 4000 1284%
At 31 December 2020 R-BZ8F
t-A=1-A 32,144 9,566 438 - - 48
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20 BHeERBeERYm
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from ) MEFITDMELEEARZIHIE
financing activities (Continued) (&)

Bank loans
and other Lease Interests Dividends
horrowings liabilities payable payable Total
RITERR
EfbfER HERE EfFE ERRE ]
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At1 January 2021 W-E=-%-f-H 362,144 9,566 438 - 362,148
Changes from financing HERSHE AT
cash flows:
Repayment of bank loans [BRENET (92,690) - - - (92,690)
Capital element of Effig ERES
lease rentals paid - (4,109) - - (4,109)
Interest element of ARG Aty
lease rentals paid - (587) - - (587)
Interests paid BAFIE - - (14,580) - (14,580)
Dividends paid RS = - - (716,571) (76,671)
Total changes from HARE TS Ag0E
__ frencingcashows @269  (46%) (145609 o) (188,537) _
Exchange adjustments ERHE (9,292) = = = (9,292)
Other changes: Eti25:
Amortization on R A S
other borrowings cost 1,012 = = = 1,012
Interest expenses A8 Ex - 587 14580 = 15,167
Increase In lease liabities EAPNEHE i
from entering nto new LHEREEM
leases during the period - 36,119 - - 36,119
Addition on dividends payable ENREEM - - - 76,571 76,571
_ Totalotherchanges . RegmeR 0 e 106 10 76511 128869
At 31 December 2021 RZ8=-%
+ZH=t+-8 261,174 41,576 438 - 293,188

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

FERGAR QG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

F UAEEST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(d)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statement

20

HEeERAEFREY @)

FRESRSRHAH
REEFAREMERZINIE

(d)

for leases comprise the following: il ZIE=S
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within operating cash flows R4 EIRSMEN (3,612) (4,643)
Within financing cash flows R EEIREMEN (4,696) (2,018)
Within investing cash flows RIREIREREA (9,284) -
(17,592) (6,661)
These amounts relate to the following: ZESFE Y KIEAR -
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Lease rentals paid EfNHEERS (8,308) (6,661)
Purchase of leasehold EEHEY
properties (9,284) -
(17,592) (6,661)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

21 BANK BORROWINGS 21 SRITER
Bank borrowings are repayable as follows: IRITERDIRUA T RNER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AR¥ETT

Withinoneyear L0 TR 251,174 93,612
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FRBERXMEAN - 258,532
251,174 352,144
Bank borrowings as of 31 December 2021 and RZE-_—F+-A=+—RAK=ZZ=
31 December 2020 were carried at amortized cost. TE+ - A=+ —HZRITE IR E
AT E ©
As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of RZZTZ—F+=—A=+—H " 7B
RMB251,174,000 (2020: RMB352,144,000) were HKARE251,174,000 L ( — - F :
unsecured, and drawn down under loan facilities of AR#352,144,00070) BEEE - WE
RMB251,174,000 (2020: RMB352,144,000). RIBEFRBERRAR 251,174,000
T(ZEZFF : AR % 352,144,000
JC) ©
In addition to the above loan facilities, as at 31 BrEERBMEIN  RZB_—F+=
December 2021, the Group had banking facilities of A=+—8" $$l%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ§AE
RMB303,019,000 (2020: RMB246,224,000) which #303,019,000 L ( ZE_ZF: AR
were secured by pledged bank deposits (note 19) ¥ 246,224,0007T) + WIAS BRI TF
and land use rights and properties (notes 11 and K (MFEE19) K i A K W 2 (Bif 5T
12). 11 K& 12) B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

21

22

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 21 SRITER @)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total RZEZ_—F+=—H=+—H K&
banking facilities of RMB594,193,000 (2020: EHEBIRITTRE AR 594,193,000
RMB952,837,000), of which RMB517,370,000 T(ZE_FTF: AR¥ 952,837,000
(2020: RMB552,357,000) was utilized. All of the L) H AR® 517,370,000 (=&
Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment —ZF: AR®552,357,0007T) E8)
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial B mBEAEBR ZRITRE I AEST
ratios, and at the same time, one of them further BAREEETUHBLEEHE 2%
requires the controlling shareholder to maintain his Rl - H AR —IEE — 2 2 RIERARR 4
equity interest and voting rights in the Company at RERARR ZBRIERREEES TK
certain level. A breach of these undertakings would o BREZSAHHERDIRNZME
result that the drawn down facilities and interest would RAEKAREREER - AEESTH
become payable on demand. The Group regularly ERZELFZIEBTEN - NZF=—
monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at F+—A=+—BERZZE=FF+=H
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, none of =+—HB FRARDEEZHETEE
the covenants relating to the drawn down facilities had ER o
been breached.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 BEHRHEMEMNREA
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-B=-% R-ZT_ZF
+=A=+—-8| +=ZA=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFT
Trade payables 2 S ENFIR 166,557 187,647
Bills payable (note (a)) FER & (FiiE (a) 380,280 283,973
Trade and bills payables (note (b)) BIRNTRIER
AR (5 (b)) 546,837 471,620
Contract liabilities BHEE 74,955 47,575
Other payables and accruals Hfth & A5 IR e AT B 95,533 132,590
717,325 651,785
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognized as income within one year
or are repayable on demand.

(@ Bills payable as at 31 December 2021
were secured by pledged bank deposits of
RMB114,084,000 (2020: RMB85,721,000)
(note 19) and land use rights and properties of
RMB224,384,000 (2020: RMB149,571,000)
(notes 11 and 12).

(b)  An ageing analysis of the trade and bills
payables based on the invoice date is as

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

22 BHRHEMEMRIE @)

FEE 5 R EMENRIBRMEN —F
N ER RBATIRERERE -

@ Z—EZ—F+-A=+—HHE
NEBEADEBRITFRARE
114,084,000 L (ZZE=F4F : A
R #85,721,0007t ) ( M 7£19)
AR T FERAEREARE
224,384,000 T(ZZFE=FF : A
R #149,571,000 7T ) 1E & #8 (B
Z11K&12) -

b) EBEIZEMNFERENRERIEE
SEHOREDTT

follows:

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-TB=—F R-ZT_ZTF
+=ZHA=+—-H| +t=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Within 3 months ={EAAA 339,642 293,553

More than 3 months but = 1E A A _EX{E R AR
within 6 months 203,842 173,280

More than 6 months but 7~ ME A LA E—F AR

within 1 year 672 2,201
More than 1 year —FUE 2,681 2,586
546,837 471,620
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HBARK
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-B=-—F RZZEZTF
+=A=+—-R8| +ZA=1+—8H
Present Present
value of the value of the
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
REHEE REHE
MR E NFBRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETF T
Within 1 year —F R 13,868 2,903
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA 13,957 2,817
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRBRER 13,751 3,846
41,576 9,566

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
the rate of 14% to 16% of the eligible employees’
salaries to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for
the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension
obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

There is no forfeited contributions that may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits beyond the
contributions described above.

24

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

& RiBHkig#
FE SRR ARt E

AEENTEMBAR2EATETR
KB RS T A S B SUE HBR IR
@AM B (Taxat &1 1) - T\t - B
BRAEIAUNGEREEHFEMNI4%E
16% BV L R [AILET SIE L K - AR E
ERRMBER - RERB|BEEN T
B3t 7 AT - 77 BUR R R %
AR EMRINE B XTRAREAESR
1 o

REETMREE B R B 1E AR 278
Bl BRBERERBIGOIET REERE
ReEBRERHIERATEE TS (M58
Bestdl]) - BEEF S AMBILRE
ANEBNREHFERNREE - RIFERTE
it El  BREREEESBARSIH
R HRBERREEEBUANGS - If
TMSHEBEE AR A 30,00087TH £
PR o [MIFTEIVEL R FRBIE SR

MER HAEEREREHTOKFEZE

PRI o

B EXFT RSN - REBREAREE
MR E EEMEREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Share-hased Payment

A subsidiary of the Company entered into
an arrangement in Jan 2021 to acquire
a trademark and to collaborate with the
trademark seller and another independent
third party to develop a business for sale and
marketing of branded fashion apparels.

The arrangement included the issue of 41%
shares in that subsidiary to the trademark
seller and the independent third party at a
nominal consideration of HK$41. In addition,
the subsidiary has the rights to repurchase
the 41% equity interest from trademark seller
and the independent third party at a nominal
consideration of HK$41 unless specific
performance conditions are achieved by
them. As at 31 December 2021, the specific
performance conditions were not met.

Pre-IPO Employee Share Option Scheme
(the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme)

On 8 October 2013, the Company granted
options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 8,520,000 shares of the Company to
its directors, employees and one of its
distributors, under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.024,
being 80% of the initial public offering price.
No further option could be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after 8
October 2013. Options granted had vesting
periods of 1 to 3 years commencing from 28
October 2013, being the date of the listing of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Each option gives the holders the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 HESRALRCEERMXZS

TRANSACTIONS (continued) (#)

(b) Pre-IPO Employee Share Option Scheme (b BHXRARREAEERED
(the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) (RO ERBAMER
(Continued) gl)#)
Pursuant to the rules of the share option RIZERERT IR A - faRE
scheme, options will lapse when the grantee AEFH - KAERE - RN
ceases to be an employee of the Group BE@E S AN REAmM B A
for reasons other than death, permanent AEBEREESAEKLIEEREER
disability, retirement and transfer of X715 RIBARERSERY -

employment to related parties, or terminates
the business with the Group.

The number of pre-IPO share options RELER ﬁ'ﬁiﬁﬁ&—f%ﬁﬁz
outstanding and exercisable as at year end BRAAREEABREZRE W
dates are as follows: ™
2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTHF
Outstanding as R—A—BERTE
at 1 January 2,750,000 2,950,000
Lapsed during the year FAE KK - (200,000)
Outstanding as RTZA=T—BrHKTE
at 31 December 2,750,000 2,750,000
Exercisable as R+=—A=+—HBr FT{E
at 31 December 2,750,000 2,750,000
The share options outstanding at RZEZ—F+A=1+—H#H
31 December 2021 had a weighted average ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂgzmﬁézﬁ’] Fler &
remaining contractual life of 1.8 years (2020: HER18F(ZZT_ZTF : 28
2.8 years). F)o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

25 HIHFRLIBRMHBERNHEZS

TRANSACTIONS (continued) (#)

(c) Share Option Scheme adopted on ) R-Z—Z=F+AH/\BHN
8 October 2013 (the Share Option Z REBR iR B (REARAEETE)
Scheme)

On 13 June 2020, the Group cancelled RZZEZFTFAT=H K&
11,400,000 share options granted in B EUE T R 1% B AR AT 2R
accordance with the terms of the Share T #) 11,400,000 17 BEARHE - HR
Option Scheme. The cancellation was made TEEERERARRIRMNE K
as the Company considered the options ME W ARRRBZEHETH
could no longer serve the purpose of BElA AR AR B s B @A B
providing incentives or rewards to grantees B - BUEHEUE ©
given the exercise prices were significantly
higher than the then market price of the
Company'’s shares.
Details of movements in the share options FERRERTEITE TR IE IR EE Bt
under the Share Option Scheme are as BEIIAT :
follows:
Options granted  Options granted
on 3 August 2017  on 13 June 2018
with exercise with exercise
price of HK$2.19 price of HK$3.54 Total
RZB—tF RZB-N\%F
NAZEREN AAT=BREN
TEBR2198T THEERIS4ER
HiERE HiskRE @t
Outstanding at RZZZTF
1 January 2020 —A—HRKTE 4,800,000 6,600,000 11,400,000
Cancelled 2t (4,800,000) (6,600,000) (11,400,000)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
and 31 December +=-A=+—"H
2021 R-E-—F
+=ZA=+—H - - -

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 BFE - EHiWREKRE
(@ Movements in components of equity (A #HIIFHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGFEERE IO HFI KR
closing balances of each component of the FREGOERFNGEER Y
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the EE VNN T%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. MEFEROEEFBEHSNBAT

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Capital
Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange  Retained
Company capital premium reserves reserves reserve profits Total
g
A2 Rk  RGEE  EERE  EAEE  ENGE  REEH h)

Note  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETn ARETm ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR
Balanceat1 January 2020 ~ W=Z-Ff

-R-BhER 3 5,214 919 34 4,984 7 51,177 70,925
Changes in equity for 2020: ~ —F=FEH
E&gE.
Total comprehensive income.~~ ERZANELE
forthe year - - - - (2,062) 43,037 40985
Transfer befuween reserves FEHaR - - - (8,561) - 8561 -
Eouiy setfled share-based EREENRGE
fransactions ERIRS - - - 5575 - - 5575
Dividends declared EERRE 260) - - - - - 63,229) (63,229)
Balance at 31 December 2020 M=Z=FFE+=f
and 1 January 2021 =t+-BR
ZE--F
-f-RlEs 31 5214 9,19 384 1,898 (1,981) 39,546 54,256
Changes in equity for 2021: ~ —E=—%ff
EngE
Total comprehensive income.~~ FRZANEEE
for the year - - - - (1529 74,780 73,251
Dividends declared EEE 260) - - - - - (16571) (76571)
Balance at 31 December 2021 A=Z=—%+7
=t-ANER 8 5,214 9,1% 34 1898 (3,510) 37,755 50,96
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 BEX - FHinBERE @)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends b B2
0] Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) FEERAFEEEMNAA
of the Company attributable to the year ey 0] s
2021 2020
—E-—5 —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR®ET T
Interim dividend declared EERN;EX
and paid of HK$0.085 By ERAR S
per ordinary share Tl EBER
(2020: HK$0.076 per 0.085 ;‘%7‘5
ordinary share) —E-FF
FiRE Bk
0.076787T) 47,096 44,802
Final dividend proposed RS BiAE R 1%
after the end of the N0 E N SN
reporting period of BRRE R
HK$0.034 per 0.034 }%ﬁ
ordinary share (ZE=ZF -
(2020: HK$0.053 per TRy T
ordinary share) 0.053#7T) 18,527 30,474
65,623 75,276
The final dividend proposed after the R E B A R@ BR A R
end of the reporting period has not HA AR B 30 AT 5 B ORI
been recognised as a liability at the RREE-

end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 BEX - FHinBERE@wm)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends (continued) (h) BBR#)

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders i) HERE—HBREFEER
of the Company attributable to the AN EHEE ROR B FE AT
previous financial year, approved and RARERRRARE
paid during the year

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Final dividend in respect of ME—EFBEE
the previous financial year, HEAE R AR

approved and paid HREAIR S B R
during the year, of HK$0.053 & HQO 053787
per ordinary share (ZEZZTF:
(2020: HK$0.03 per FIRE B
ordinary share) 0.03/87T) 29,475 18,427
(c) Share capital (c) R&®
() Authorised and issued share capital N EEREBBRITEF
2021 2020
Z2>-F i 3

No.ofshares  HK$'000  RMB'000 No.ofshares  HK$000  RMB000
RO%E TEn ARETn RA%E Tin ARETR

Authorised: AR
Ordinary shares of BRAEI BT
HK$0.01 each LEBR 10,000,000,000 100,000 79,208 10,000,000 100,000 79,208

Ordinary shares, issued ~ DRTHRLER :

and fully paid:
At 1 January and R—A-BR
31 December T-A=1-H 668,593,000 6,686 5214 668,593,000 6,086 5214
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)
(¢) Share capital ccontinued)

26 B/E - EiWREKRE @)

(M

(ii)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

The equity shareholders are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares issued under share option
scheme

There was no share options granted
or exercised during the year ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 BEX - FHinBERE@wm)
(Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves 0 GERBHEERRBE
() Share premium M BERiE
Under the Companies Law of the RERSFESARNE K
Cayman lIslands, the funds in the RAIRMEER ENES
Company’s share premium account A9k TR ﬁf =B
are distributable to the shareholders EREERREREERZ
provided that immediately following the & RAREBRNESE
date on which the dividend is proposed BB ERDHAE -
to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the course of business.
(1) Capital reserve () BFEEME
Capital reserves comprise the BEAREFEBRIEATIER ¢
followings:
2021 and 2020
:g:—iﬁ
—E-TF
RMB’000
ARET T
The Group rEE
Equity settled share-based At & ARG A
transactions (note 25) A5 (H5E25) 1,759
Arising from reorganisation BEZEAHESE
(notes (i) and (ii)) (BREE () B (ii)) 37,493
Arising from acquisition U FE i AR i 2
of non-controlling = A (BRE i)
interests (note (iii)) (19,184)
20,068
The Company RAT
Equity settled share-based #E At & ARG A
transactions (note 25) A5 (H5E25) 1,759
Avrising from reorganisation B ZE 482 A4 (P& (i)
(note (i) 139
1,898

“E-—FFHR FERGARAS




216

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(i) Capital reserve (Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

On 18 May 2009, the controlling
shareholder sold his entire equity
interest in Cabbeen China to Cabbeen
China Investments Limited (“Cabbeen
Investments”), so that Cabbeen
Investments became the holding
company of Cabbeen China. The
consideration for the transaction was
RMB11,200,000. The difference of
RMB37,354,000 between the initial
cash consideration and the capital of
Cabbeen China was recorded as a
capital reserve.

On 31 July 2012, the Company issued
and allotted 100 shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each as a consideration to
purchase the entire issued share capital
of Grandfull International Holdings
Limited (“Grandfull International”) and
Cabbeen International Holdings Limited
from the controlling shareholder. The
difference of RMB139,000 between
the purchase consideration and the
share capital of Grandfull International
and Cabbeen International Holdings
Limited was recorded as an increase
of shareholder’s contribution in capital
reserve.

On 23 November 2020, Cabbeen China
acquired 35.67% of non-controlling
interest in Huazhi Development with a
total carrying value of RMB23,816,000
at a consideration of RMB43,000,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents
the nominal amount of the shares
repurchased.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the
PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in the
mainland China are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax-
profit (after offsetting prior year losses)
as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distribution of profits to parent
companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25%
of its registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside
mainland China which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1(w).

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

F UAEEST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(v)  Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2021, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB45,338,000
(2020: RMB48,658,000). After the end
of the reporting period the directors
propose a final dividend of HK$0.034
(2020: HK$0.053) per ordinary share
(note 26(b)).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for its equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(e)

Capital management Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure with
reference to its debt position. The Group’s
strategy which is unchanged from 2020, is to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there are adequate
working capital to service its debt obligations.
The Group’s debt to asset ratio, being the
Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, at
31 December 2021 was 42% (2020: 44%).

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-assets
ratio at the end of the current and previous
reporting periods were as follows:

Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Current assets MEBEE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Debt to asset ratio BHEEL*

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

26 B/E - EiWKREKRE @)

() B/FEE )
AEEL2RBEEHBBRERER
g AEBMRBEE_T-F
F— BRFE=EAEHE
EVE  MRETHEEEST
NEHE - RN-_E-_—F+_-H4
=+—H X AEENEBEEL
R(MAEBENBEERIARE
EFSLER) B42%(ZE=-F
F :44%) o

REBRARERERMBER
SHRRNEHBEREEEF

ERMT -
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—s-—F —ZE-EF
+=A=t-8| +=A=t+-*
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBF T
1,015,673 797,794
27,708 265,258
1,892,843 1,916,430
575,858 476,354
42% 44%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

RABREEFMBAR G IZ
SNRIEINEIE A KR TE PTIR Bl -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

27

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and deposits with
banks. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

(i

Trade and other receivahles

Credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit terms. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
history of making payments and current
abilities to pay and take into account
information specific to the customer as
well as to the economic environment.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer and
therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. As at 31
December 2021, 14% (2020: 16%)
of the total trade and bills receivables
were concentrated in one customer,
and 49% (2020: 57%) of the total
trade and bills receivables were
concentrated in five customers of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(@) Credit risk Continued)

1]

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group
does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

The Group measures loss allowances
for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 &I RMEmREREERA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{EH (&)
(Continued)
(@ Credit risk (continued) @ EEmEE
() Trade and other receivables ) HBEREMERRE
(Continued) (&)
The following table provides information TRHEINR =T = — i
about the Group’s exposure to credit +ZA=+—Bk=F=
risk and ECLs for trade and bills TFE+ZA=1T—RAZXE
receivables as at 31 December 2021 EEEEERRRONE
and 31 December 2020: B & E 5 e SR IE K& E UL
EBRNEHNEENTEHE
EEE -
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2021 loss rate amount allowance
—B-—F EHESEE REAEE EERE

% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR

Current (not past due) BIEA (R HA) 0.05% 520,990 (261)
1-90 days past due BEI1 =00 H 1.00% 83,415 (834)
91-180 days past due #HIO1 £180 H 50.00% 526 (263)
More than 180 days past due #EAERAE180H  100.00% 12 (12)
604,943 (1,370)
Gross

Expected carrying Loss

2020 loss rate amount  allowance
—E-THF TEHIEIEX RERE BERE

% RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT

Current (not past due) BIHER (R HA) 0.05% 497,641 (249)
1-90 days past due #EI1 290 H 1.00% 50,380 (504)
91-180 days past due #HI01 =180 H 50.00% 19 ©)

More than 180 days past due #EEE180H  100.00% - -

548,040 (762)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 &I RMSREREERLA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (@)
(Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@A EERE 2
(i) Trade and other receivables (i) EHRHEMEKRIR
(Continued) (&)

Expected loss rates are based on
actual loss experience over the past
2 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 18.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had transferred bank acceptance bills
totalling RMB160,258,000 (2020:
RMB181,046,000), which were
derecognised as financial asset. The
transferees have recourse right to the
Group in case of default by the issuing
banks. In such cases, the Group
would have to repurchase these bank
acceptance bill at face value. These
bank acceptance bills mature six
months from respective dates of issue
and the Group’s maximum loss in
case of default are RMB160,258,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB181,046,000).

TRHEEEDREBRE?
FHERBELREL -
HEUERIELBEAR
) iriﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
E’]i%/gﬂj(/ﬂ = BRI R &
7 £ [8) %1 e g 57 7 R 2
LESEEY P Ozok -5 q:0F-3
Ho

BERASEMEAXKEE
5 R EAMEKRFIRNEE
REE— P EERBHN
FIFE18

RZEZ—F+=ZAH=
+—H AEEE#EZE
RITEHREBEHEARK
160,258,000 (=T =&
F: AR #181,046,000
T0) ' REFRITEREEE
RIERRBESREE © i
BEEIRITED  AEAY
rEEFERE - EILIB
T AEBBETETIE
HEBLRZEFRITELE
B ZERITALERB
HEB/EITA RN
EASHE - tnH3REL -
AEBR T -_—F+=
A=+ —HEAZH&EK
B8 A A R % 160,258,000
T(ZEZEF: ARK
181,046,000 7T) °

-5 FERGHERLAT
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MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

F UAEEST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Credit risk (continueq)

(i)

(ii)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

The Group considers that the credit
risk associated with bank acceptance
bills issued by major banks in the PRC
to be insignificant.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group
lent three loans with total face
value of RMB27,943,000 to Huazhi
Investments, an associated company
of the Group, repayable by 2025 and
accounted as loans to an associate
in non-current assets. Based on the
financial position and the economic
environment the associate operates,
the Group considers that the credit
risk associate with above loans to be
insignificant.

Deposits with hanks

The Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established
credit rating. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management
does not expect any counterparty to
fail to meet its obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 &I RMSREREERLA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{EH (&)

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (h) FEHEIEE
Individual operating entities within the AEBRMERNKEEBERER
Group are responsible for their own cash AENESERE  BREASAK

management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management and
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities
and discounted bills of the Group are carried
at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the
financial liabilities are with maturities within
one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.

ERIREREEEFARNTE
HIME S HK - HEMEBLSA
TEERRENRFE - AIERGE
BENEEHAE -

AEBHNHERDIERERRDE
EHERMEBERE (WHE)HE
SER NEREGERTHRES
EEkEEZESREBERGEN
WAEGRED  WENEHNREE

HRAESBEBEERN —FAEM
AN E AR EENRE
B BAKENERZEERE
BERMBRREGRER SRR
BReREMTNEETH -

—E- 558 FEARGERAT

225




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 &I RMEmREREERA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{EH (&)

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (h) REIZREE 2
The contractual undiscounted cash flow and RBERR - SMBENELOR
carrying amount of financial liabilities as at AEReRELRERAEBESEY N
the end of the reporting period are set out as T
follows:

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
ARRBRRERE
More than ~ More than
Within 1yearbut  2year but

Carrying 1 year or on less than less than

31 December 2021 amount Total demand 2 year 5years
—FRg -EHt MELLE

“E--5+ZA=t+-AH REE @t EEX MERR BEHUR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRE  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARRTX

Bank borrowings FITEH 251,174 263,876 263,876 - -
Trade and bills BIRENTER

payables ERZR 546,837 546,837 546,837 - -
Other payables At ERFER

and accruals ETER 95,533 95,533 95,533 - -
Lease liabilties BEAR 41,576 45,013 15,561 15,254 14,198

935,120 951,259 921,807 15,254 14,198
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(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 &I RMSREREERLA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (@)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk Continued) (h) FREFILEE 2

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
aAERReRE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 year but

Carrying 1 year or on less than less than

31 December 2020 amount Total demand 2 year 5 years
—ER —FE MEAE

ZEEETZA=T-R FREE @t EEX MELRA REURA

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT ARETR

Bank borrowings RITIER 362,144 380,624 95,098 285,626 -
Trade and bills BARRNTER
payables EREER 471,620 471,620 471,620 - -
Other payables HiEFER
and accruals it ER 132,590 132,590 132,590 - -
Lease liabilties HERE 9,566 10,421 3,292 3,067 4,062
965,920 995,255 702,600 288,693 4,062
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIFERBE
Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or FMERERRECHIANATFEN
future cash flows of a financial instrument KRB\ RERERATIHHED
will fluctuate because of changes in market SmEEHERE - NEEAF
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk ERBREBRERFEETFTENR
arises primarily from bank borrowings carried TER  ASEHBRRERE
at variable rates, which exposes the Group FMERE RZTE-_—F+=ZH
to cash flow interest rate risk. The effective =+—B8 AEEWRITERE
interest rate of the bank borrowings of the BRF R B519% (T T F :
Group as at 31 December 2021 was 5.19% 4.70%) °

(2020: 4.70%).
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(B 77885 Z )

F UAEEST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Interest rate risk (Continuea)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax for the year and retained profits
by approximately RMB2,097,000 (2020:
RMB2,906,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
impact on the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits that would arise assuming
that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest
rates. The analysis has been performed on
the same basis for 2020.

Gurrency risk

Individual companies within the Group have
limited foreign currency risk as most of the
transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the
operation in which they relate. The Group’s
functional currency is RMB as all the turnover
are within the PRC. With the natural hedging
of the revenue and costs being denominated
in RMB, the Group’s transactional foreign
exchange exposure was insignificant.
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(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 &I RMSREREERLA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{EH (&)
(Continued)
(e) Fair value e X2FE
() Financial assets measured at fair ) ELAFEEHEMNS
value B
Fair value hierarchy NTHEEZER

The fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments were measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

J Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted gquoted
prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, the Group has no
financial asset measured at fair value.
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MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 &I RMEmREREERA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{EH (&)
(Continued)
(e) Fair value continued) e 2FE#E
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and () EFBRAFEIIEZE
liabilities carried at other than fair MmEERARHBLTFE
value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s RZB_—FR_ZT_F
financial instruments carried at F+-A=+—8" ' &&
amortised cost were not materially EIREHEN AT R & &
different from their fair values as at 31 TEAMERAEREEQNFE
December 2021 and 2020. WHRERER -
28 COMMITMENTS 28 iz
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December RZE_—F+A=+—8 XX
2021 not provided for in the financial statements BHMRAIERBENORBEITE RN REDN
were as follows: 5 &
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET T

Contracted for =L 44,065 15,321
Authorised but not contracted for = IXAEMERRTHY 44,308 81,426
88,373 96,747
In addition, the Group was not committed to enter AN REBEVEAFR T —4F
into a long-term lease that is not yet commenced at +ZA=+— EI R — M HARRBHR
31 December 2021 (2020: Ni). HHE(ZZT=_FF : |) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party

transactions.

(@) Transactions with a related party

U)

As at 31 December 2021, there
were three loans receivable from
an associated company, Huazhi
Investments with principal amount of
RMB15,840,000, RMB3,853,000 and
RMB8,250,000, respectively. The detall
of loans receivable are as follows:

The loan of RMB15,840,000 lent
to Huazhi investment in 2018, was
unsecured, carried an interest at
30% above PBOC base interest
rate per annum and repayable by
August 2019. Repayment date of
this loan was subsequently extended
to February 2021, February 2022
and further to February 2025. As at
31 December 2021, the principal
and interest of the loan are totally
amounted to RMB19,269,000 (2020:
RMB17,838,000).

The loan of RMB3,853,000 lent during
the year, was unsecured, carried
an interest of 7% per annum and
repayable by September 2025. As
at 31 December 2021, the principal
and interest of the loan are totally
amounted to RMB3,928,000 (2020:
Nil).

The loan of RMB8,250,000 lent during
the year, was unsecured, carried
an interest at 30% above PBOC
base interest rate per annum and
repayable by November 2025. As
at 31 December 2021, the principal
and interest of the loan are totally
amounted to RMB8,305,000 (2020:
Nil).

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

29 EXEHBAES

B SRR AL 6 IR e R T R
5N AREEETSIA T EAME TS -

@ H—BABWEXS
() N —F+=A
_+ g - R E—[E &
NRIEEREN=TREIK
ﬁﬁ reBELRAEAR
¥ 15,840,0007T * AR
3,853,000t & A R ¥
8,250,000t - A EWE
HEFBWT ¢

RZZE—N\FEFESK
& AN R #15,840,0007C
MERBEKRE . ZF
B ARBITEEFRN R
F30%E B W EMN =
T—NFEN\ARIEE - %
ERMERHEER TS
E-FT-—4F-R - =%
T ZF_ARE—FTE
“TE_RAFE-_R- R
i——¢+ A=+—
B AE RFBES
ﬁ%AEMm%mm
T(ZE2E_FF: AR¥
17,838,000 ) °

RERNBEHARK
3,853,000 ST E TR B &K
o FREETY R
T_RAFNAFIEE K
—E-—F+-"A=+—
H BExnAekiEE
# A& A R #3,928,000 7T
<_?_ CAF 4R o

RERNBEHARK
8,250,000 ST B TR B £ K
e FHERZPHARR
ITEEFFIE FIZ30% 5T
B ERA_E-_RAFE+—
ARIEE - R-_T - —%F
+—A=+—H ' EXH
e kFBEHABARE
8,305,000t( — & = &
FoM|)o

—E- 558 FEARGERAT




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EXBRBIA XS (@)

(Continued)
(a) Transactions with a related party (A H—BRABRARSRZ)
(Continued)

232

(i)

(i)

Included in the Prepayment
for acquisition of plant and
equipment contained an amount of
RMB38,102,000 (2020: RMB35,703,000)
paid to Huazhi Investments as a
deposit to purchase an office premises
located in Guangzhou City held by
Huazhi Investments. The deposit
was a conversion of loan principal of
RMB32,000,000 and loan interests
receivable of RMB6,102,000 due from
Huazhi Investments. The selling price
of the property will be determined
with reference to 95% of a valuation
provided by an independent appraiser.
According to the agreement, the
Group has discretion to acquire the
property upon completion or demand
a full repayment of the outstanding
balance of the loan with the interest
due from Huazhi Investments.

The Group leased properties from
Huazhi Investments as office premises
in December 2021 for three years.
The Group recognized respective
right-of-use asset and lease liability of
RMB20.2 million as at 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

None of the above related party transactions
falls under the definition of connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EXBRBIH XS (@)

(Continued)

(b) Key management personnel b FEEEARHH
compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel AEEFTZEBAEME (RIE
of the Group, including amounts paid to the T FHESHIEENARAE
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 ERMFOFEENE TR
and certain of the highest paid employees as EEMFIB)IAT :

disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

2021 2020
—E--F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEFIT
Short-term employee % HAfE St A
benefits 3,876 5,391
Contributions to retirement Rt FIET S (K
benefit scheme 89 70
Equity settled share-based #Em#s&E AN &
payment expenses AERe A - 129
3,965 5,590
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” FeREH N [BETKA] (it
(note 6(b)). 6(b)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

30

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when
reviewing the financial statements. The principal
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The
Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements.

(@) Net realisahble value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products with similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of change in
customer preference and competitor actions
in response to the industry situation. Any
change in the assumptions would increase
or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down
made in prior years and affect the Group’s
net assets value. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period.
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(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

30 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 30 EXErHEAsHRFIE (&)
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and other (h) BWHRHEMEBUERIERKE

receivahles

The Group estimates the loss allowances
for trade receivables by assessing the ECLs.
This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors,
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
end of reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of
trade receivables and thus the impairment
loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group keeps assessing the
expected credit loss of trade receivables
during their expected lives.

Bank acceptance hills

As set out in note 27(a)(i), the Group
considers that the credit risk associated with
bank acceptance bills issued by major banks
in the PRC to be insignificant. The Group
monitors the credit risk of issuing banks. The
judgement to derecognise bank acceptance
bills upon discounting or endorsement is
reviewed when the credit risk of issuing
banks deteriorates significantly.
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(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31 LFMBRRAE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2021 2020
B —E T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BRE ARET T ARBTTT
Non-current asset IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARIMKRE 15 14,065 14,065
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b RN IR 60,767 293,688
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFEEFEEY 489 137
61,256 293,825
Current liability REBEE
Other payables and accruals H At A 5RIE &
JEETE 24,385 258,634
24,385 253,634
Net current assets REBEEFE 36,871 40,191
NET ASSETS EEFE 50,936 54,256
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#EE 26(a)
Capitals B 5,214 5,214
Reserves G 45,722 49,042
NET ASSETS EERE 50,936 54,256
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEFeN T - —F A _-+—Hit
directors on 21 February 2022. R RET)EE o
Mr. Ziming Yang Mr. Ronggin Ke
BRAXE MR E
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Executive Director
TTHABRFHNTTESE HITEEF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The rise in new infections of Covid-19 since the
second half of 2021 led to more travel restrictions
and lockdowns which inevitably affected
consumption sentiment and the Group’s business.
[t seems that the virus containment measures will
stay in force in the near term and it will take more
time to allow the economy to return to normalcy.
Considering the possible derail of recovery due
to unfavorable macro environment and the risk
of surge in coronavirus infection, the Group had
decreased orders of products for first half of 2022.
The management of the Group will stay cautious
and react proactively to the evolving market
conditions.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2021, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr.
Ziming Yang.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments,
and a new standard, IFRS17, Insurance contracts,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2021 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

32

33

34

MAE R (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZES) AN REST)

BREREIFRARER

BT —FTHFUR - FIETEMRE
SRR ERE INEHE ZHIRTTR
MESEERL G  EHRHEBEER
AEBXKERTE - URERRA S
EEBANDESEEEN  FUHKERE
BLEEAEERER - ZEE T
REIRE A NS AR = R BUE ) L
AR EMERERE HAKED RS =
T__FFYFHNERAE - AREE
EERREEERE  BEREYBESE

RIS
R-ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H %R
BN BRI RAIERS 5 AIGRB AL -

g#FE—_=_—%+—-A
=t+—HLFEECHEGE
AREMAERT « FMETEA R
REMRRRE
BEAVERATIZASH  BRESTE
A EecBMEIEER] - —BHIE
I BPR B 75 R 5 HE RN 56 1 7 SR ARBR & AT 74
ERITINEE B F+_A=+—
HIEFERARER - BRAPBHRERL
REA o AT AR seE AN B AR RE Y 3%
LR -

—E- 558 FEARGERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTEHES) - UARBEST)

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 34
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (Continued)

8FZ_Z2_—%+°A
=E+—HILFECH G
MERERBERT - MFTEAR
RENRRERE W)
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5 A=z
BN ETTHEER
Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual framework 1 January 2022
BURR B 15 S YE RIS BSRAERT AN - S/ ABLRAESR T -F—H—H

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equ/,oment: Proceeds before intended use
B S5 ERIFE165RIEFT AN - W% - BE KRR -
BT B2 Prigak B
Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts-cost of
fu/ﬁ///'ng a contract
R ST AERISE 37 SRASET AN -
BRRIEEH — BITEAZ KA
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 cycle

- N\FE_T_TFREHYZ BV HRE RN FERE

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of liabilities
as current or non-current
BIFR @5t 2ERIE 1 SRIEET N - BESLERBAIA S FEATRT
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of accounting policies

1 January 2022
—E__F—H—H

1 January 2022
T _F—H—H

1 January 2022
—E-_—_f—H—H
1 January 2023

—ET-=%—H—H
1 January 2023

BFR SRR E 1 R BRI BREERNEBREF 2RIEFTA -

BRI EE
Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates
BIRR & 5T ERISE 8SRIER] AN - @A 251 E S
Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction

R SRTERFA12RERTAN  HE-KXGELZEER
B (E1H6 < B H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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REBEFHEZFER - #a £/ K2
BREXERBRMELZRE - R
BRARS B AR EIRE A ge 4R & M54
REREARTE -




FIVE YEARS SUMMARY =—
hEFEHE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F ko2 “E-NF —T-N\F S 3
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARETR  AR%Tr  ARETR  ARETR
Revenue e 1,372,662 1,288,422 1,274,966 1,273,473 1,089,106
Cost of sales HENA (743,825) (679,957) (714,875) (694,730) (551,493)
Gross profit 7 628,837 608,465 560,091 578,743 537,613
Personal protective EWNEZ-e
equipment revenue 33,865 526,091 - - -
Personal protective EAFTERERE
equipment cost (31,840) (485,189) - - -
Other income EH TN 68,645 84,015 66,777 58,100 42,786
Selling and distribution HERNHRX
eXpenses (290,618) (201,073) (218,915) (179,423) (153,392)
Administrative and other ~ {TRURE & ERY
operating expenses (153,589) (239,465) (164,513) (146,388) (125,671)
Profit from operations BE RN 255,300 202,844 243,440 311,082 301,336
Finance costs BERNA (16,179) (19,307) (21,608) (19,891) (16,555
Share of loss of an ME—REHE AR
associate NER (1,608) (154) (46) (190) -
Profit before taxation BRBAT AR 237,513 273,383 221,786 290,951 284,781
Income tax expense FriEmR% (68,872) (78,342) (63,644) (80,708) (81,568)
Profit for the year EREA 168,641 195,041 158,142 210,243 203,213
Farnings per share SREHN
Basic (RMB) EX(ARE) 0.25 0.29 0.24 0.32 0.29
Diluted (RMB) BE(ARE) 0.25 0.29 0.24 0.32 0.29
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

LFEE(#)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EC-f “E-FF “E-NE “T-N\F “TtF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT ARETT ARETTL ARETTL
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 103,118 103,012 128,753 39,607 -
Property, plant and equipment %% Ve 266,439 205,123 176,016 50,326 73,076
Interests in leasehold %%%?ﬁ%ﬁ\%f’f E iz
land held for own use HETH 7 R
under operating lease i - - - 22,811 23,312
Intangible assets BYEE 43,320 38,295 33,299 37,393 40,218
Prepayments for acquisiton BB Rk fE 2 BAIFE
of plant and equipment \ 38,342 40,213 8,460 1,039 9,744
Other loans receivables HiERE S = - - - 64,118
Interest in an associate R—HREDRER 47,541 49,149 49,303 49,349 =
Deferred tax assets EXHBEEE ‘ 45,596 40,562 32,455 33,257 26,158
Loans to an associate m— R & D AR B 31,502 - - - -
575,858 476,354 428,286 242,782 236,626
Current assets REEE
Inventories k& 530,955 388,293 383716 383,578 337,052
Trade and other recelvables & 5 R A MR 711,074 613,346 738,863 506,393 445,829
Other financial assets HteRdE = - S 60,000 253,159
Deposits with banks RESRB =R
with original maturity BITER
date over three months ) 285,000 293,357 303,254 443944 452 860
Pledged bank deposits BERRTER 114,143 92,397 119,824 240,485 105,015
Cash and cash equivalents & RREFEN 251,671 529,087 266,992 220,484 134,593
1,892,843 1,916,430 1,812,649 1,854,884 1,728,508
Current liabilities ik J=4E
Bank borrowings RITIE 251,174 93,612 354,737 52,566 16,636
Trade and other payables  E 5 REAETFIR 717,325 661,785 501,510 597,395 590,042
Current taxation FEfRE 33,306 49,494 46,673 34,895 19,929
Lease liabilities HEAE 13,868 2,903 1,380 - -
1,015,673 797,794 994,300 684,856 626,607
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank borrowings RITIER - 258532 - 234,886 271,461
Lease liabilties HEAE 21,708 6,663 6,937 - -
Deferred tax liabilties EEREARE - 63 3,876 4,168 11,770
27,108 265,258 10,813 239,054 283,231
Net assets BEFE 1,425,320 1,329,732 1,035,820 1,173,756 1,055,296
Capital and reserves EoRfRE
Share capital B 5214 5214 5214 5214 5,203
Reserves 1 1,406,775 1,316,421 1,199,527 1,112,743 1,018,653
1,411,989 1,321,635 1,204,741 1,117,957 1,023,856
Non-controlling interests  Fi2 R Ex 13,331 8,097 31,081 55,799 31,440
Total equity g 1,425,320 1,300,732 1,035,822 1,173,756 1,055,296
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